MINUTES



__paGeNO. !

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SECTIOI\\'
828 7t Street, Eureka 5

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors
May 14, 2020

1. ROLL CALL
The Board meeting was conducted via Zoom due to COVID-19 Shelter In Place Orders. President Woo
called the meeting to order at 9:04. Director Rupp conducted the roll call. Directors Fuller, Latt, Lindberg,
Rupp and Woo were present. General Manager John Friedenbach, Superintendent Dale Davidsen, Business
Manager Chris Harris, Tech Manager Dee Dee Simpson-Glenn, and Board Secretary Sherrie Sobol were
present. Nathan Stevens of GHD, District Legal Counsel Ryan Plotz and Anne Baptiste of Thomas Law
Group were present for a portion of the meeting.

2. FLAG SALUTE
The flag salute was conducted.

3. ACCEPT AGENDA
On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Latt, the Board voted 5-0 by roll call vote to accept the
agenda.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT ‘
No public comment was received prior to the 8:45 am deadline.

A public comment was received on May 17, 2020 regarding Agenda Item 2.0: Flag Salute. A. Saulsbury
submitted an email regarding the video pledge recited by John Wayne. The comment states: “For many, I
am sure John Wayne is a symbol of Americanism. However, as a Tribal member and someone engaged in
anti-racism work, onscreen John Wayne is a symbol of harmful stereotypes and pervasive beliefs about
Native community members; offscreen John Wayne was unfortunately even more problematic.” ... “My
intent is calling attention to this is not to serve as the racial bias police. Instead, I hope this helps you make
sure your meeting substance and process is careful to avoid implicit bias that serves as a deterrent to
participation for community members who do not fit John Wayne's vision of America.”

5. MINUTES
On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Lindberg, the Board voted 5-0 by roll call vote to
approve the minutes of April 09, 2020.

6. CONSENT AGENDA
Director Fuller pulled Item 6.6 Newspaper articles. On motion by Director Fuller, seconded by Director
Lindberg, the Board voted 5-0 by roll call vote to approve the Consent Agenda, less Item 6.6.

Director Fuller pulled the article from Circle of Blue: Protective Gear in Low Supply for U.S. Water
Utilities. She inquired how staff is doing with the personal protective gear. Director Rupp asked if
operations are being impacted. Mr. Friedenbach stated this will be discussed under Operations.

Director Fuller discussed the article regarding Buildings Shut Down for Weeks May Have Contaminated
Water in Their Pipes. Mr. Friedenbach stated he sent a letter to Sheriff Honsal and Public Health Officer
Teresa Frankovich regarding this issue. Mr. Friedenbach stated he checked with the District engineer
regarding the sequencing for flushing and also checked with the CDC prior to crafting the letter. He has
not heard back from either Sheriff Honsal or Dr. Frankovich. Director Rupp stated this is important
information to get out. Director Latt suggested a “My Word” piece or other such press release.

Director Fuller also pulled the article from the Marin Independent Journal: MMWD Considers “very
aggressive” water. The Marin Municipal Water District engineer and operations director Paul Sellier was
quoted as saying “That’s part of our plan moving forward is a very aggressive take of water from



_PAGENO.Z-___

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7 Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors
May 14, 2020

Sonoma.” Director Fuller stated she thought this was an interesting choice of words and brought it up in
terms of the District water transport option. Director Rupp stated he participated in numerous discussions
with Sonoma County Water Agency and they have lots of storage capacity. The real issue is will Sonoma
provide the extra water to Marin. He doesn’t really see an increase in demand for the future. Mr.
Friedenbach noted that Marin Municipal Water District is a wholesale customer of Sonoma County Water
District. On motion by Director Fuller, seconded by Director Latt, the Board voted 5-0 by roll call vote to
approve Consent Item 6.6.

7. CORRESPONDENCE
7.1 District letter of support to Mad River Alliance
Mr. Friedenbach shared the District letter of support for the Rose Foundation Grant application that
Mad River Alliance is applying for. He noted the District submitted a similar support letter two years
ago.

7.2 District letter of support for Annie& Mary Trail Connectivity
Mr. Friedenbach discussed the letter of support for the Caltrans District 1 Arcata Annie & Mary
Connectivity Project. The end point of the trail is at the District’s Park 1. He noted that there is money
included in the project for picnic tables at Park 1 and paving/curbing the parking lot. Director Latt
recalled that the County agreed to help with the costs of restrooms at the Park 1. Mr. Friedenbach
concurred and stated if the grant application is funded, he will have a formal discussion with the
County. Director Fuller stated it would be good to have signage at the park regarding our water
system. Funds could be used from the education and outreach budget.

7.3 District letter to GHD and their response re: billing rates
The Board requested staff inquire about reduced billing rates from GHD. Staff did so and GHD

responded with an adjusted rate matrix. The District will see some savings going forward.

7.4 District’s Public Comment at Ruth Lake CSD meeting
Ruth Lake CSD closed the lake in response to the pandemic and Trinity County Shelter In Place
orders. Many locals were upset they were not able to launch their boats. The District’s public
comment letter offered a way for owners of resident watercraft (yellow sticker, category 1) to access
the lake with little or no direct contact with RLCSD staff.

7.5 District letter to Trinity County re: Curb on Mad River Road
Mr. Friedenbach shared the letter he wrote to Richard Tippett, Director of Transportation for Trinity
County. A registered geologist suggested the District install a curb on the west side of Mad River
Road above the spillway of R.W. Matthews Dam. This is a safety measure to direct surface water
from the road away from our spillway. The District is willing to install the curb at our expense and is
planning on having it installed this summer by Mercer Fraser since they are doing work in the area
with the necessary equipment. Mr. Friedenbach stated he has made numerous attempts to reach Mr.
Tippett with no success, as stated in the letter. The Board inquired what next steps were in the event
the District does not receive a response to the letter. Mr. Friedenbach stated if a response is not
received, he will reach out to the Trinity County CAO, Dr. Richard Kuhns, with whom he has
previously met.

8. CONTINUING BUSINESS
8.1 Water Resource Planning
a) Local Sales
A report from the Samoa Peninsula Stakeholder Group is expected soon and will be brought to the
Board when it is received.




_ PAGE NO. _:_?___

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors
May 14, 2020

ESS of Laguna Hills continues to prepare our grant application to the US Economic Development
Agency for $3.5 million in funding for the rehabilitation of Station 6. Staff received a draft of the
application and are in the process of providing additional information to complete the application.

b) Transport
No update.

¢) Instream Flow
Staff was hoping to provide a draft of the project description however, were not able to finalize one
component. The draft will be brought to the Special Board Meeting on May 29" for review and
possible approval. President Woo stated the Instream Flow Committee met on May 12. Next steps
include reaching out to regulatory agencies and receiving their initial comments on the draft
project description. Given the COVID-19 pandemic, it will take longer to schedule a meeting with
the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). She provided an overview of the narrative
summary for Petition for Change to the SWRCB. Director Fuller stated getting the project
narrative approved by the Board is the next big step.

8.2 Cannabis affecting Mad River Watershed
Mr. Friedenbach shared the article “Judge Holds Landowner Liable for Cultivation-Related
Environmental Crimes Despite Claim He Was Not Directly Involved”. Director Latt noted the
findings of the court showed that the landowner did know what was going on with his property.

This decision will be a valuable tool going forward to hold people accountable for the environmental
damage.

8.3 The Board entered into closed session at 2:30 pm and returned to open session at 4:30 pm
Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation Initiation of litigation pursuant to
paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 (Brosgart)
Due to a perceived conflict, President Woo recused herself from the meeting. Mr. Friedenbach
reported out that the Board unanimously (4-0 by roll call vote) moved in closed session to approve the
withdrawal of
its appeal of the Planning Commission decision to approve four applications submitted by Michael
and Ariel Brosgart for Humboldt APN 516-111-064 as stated in the letter from the Thomas Law
Group on behalf of the District.

Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation Initiation of litigation pursuant to
paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 (Axel)
President Woo stated there was no reportable action.

Public Employee Performance Evaluation for General Manager (pursuant to Section 54957(b)(1)

President Woo stated there was no reportable action.

8.4 Vivid Green
Mr. Friedenbach stated Vivid Green, LLC requested a letter of support from the District for a new
Variance they would like to file with the Trinity County Planning Department. District legal counsel
Ryan Plotz previously recommended the Board request an environmental indemnity agreement in
exchange for District support of the variance. Mr. Plotz stated the indemnity agreement is a standard
one and reviewed sections two and ten with the Board. Director Latt stated the document looked good
to him.



828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors
May 14, 2020

Mr. Plotz stated legal counsel for Vivid Green has reviewed the document as well as the support letter
and found them acceptable. On motion by Director Lindberg, seconded by Director Rupp, the Board
voted 5-0 by roll call vote to approve the Environmental Indemnity Agreement and the District letter
of support to Trinity County for variance.

9. NEW BUSINESS
9.1 Resolution 2020-05 Quagga/Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention Grant Program Application and

Funding Agreement 2019/20
Director Rupp read Resolution 2020-05. This resolution is required for participation in the grant
funding program to assist with the Quagga/Zebra Mussel prevention plan. The resolution authorizes
the District to apply for the grant and for the general manager as the designated representative to
handle all aspects of the grant if approved. On motion by Director Latt, seconded by Director Rupp,
the Board voted 5-0 by roll call vote to approve Resolution 2020-05.

9.2 Policy for Eligibility for Health Care Coverage-Temporary Revision
Ms. Harris stated the Board approved this policy last month, however, ACWA/JPIA extended the

deadline from May 31 to July 31*. Staff proposes to change the deadline verbiage to “until rescinded
by ACWA/JPIA” rather than coming back to the Board each time ACWA/JPIA extends the
deadline. The Board concurred. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Fuller, the
Board voted 5-0 by roll call vote to approve the temporary revision to the Policy for Eligibility for
Health Care Coverage.

10. REPORTS (from Staff)
10.1 Engineering
a) 12kV Switchgear Replacement ($441,750 District Match)
Mr. Stevens stated the contractor is in the process of revising their submittal. He should have the
final in the next few weeks and will share it with PG&E. PG&E indicated they will only need one
week to review it. The District still has not heard back regarding the additional funding requested
for this project.

b) Appeal of FEMA Funding Denial for Collector 4 Emergency Restoration Work
As previously reported, FEMA denied funding of $365,000 and the District filed an appeal. There
is no news on the appeal yet.

c) Collector Mainline Redundancy Hazard Mitigation Grant ($790,570 District Match)
Mr. Stevens said it looks like the project will be funded, most likely late summer or early fall.

d) Reservoir Structural Retrofit Hazard Mitigation Grant ($914,250 District Match)
Nothing to report. Hoping that NEPA will be finished soon.

e) TRF Generator Hazard Mitigation Grant ($460,431 District Match)
Mr. Stevens was happy to report that the project was removed from the waitlist and CalOES
recommended it to FEMA for funding. We will likely know more in late fall.
10.2 Financial
a) Financial Report

Ms. Harris provided the April financial report. She noted the US Bank General Account balance
is higher than usual. This is because money has not yet been shifted to investment
accounts given the uncertain financial market fluctuations now with the pandemic. She also
noted in the expenditure report that PG&E rates were much higher than anticipated and will




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT T

SECTION__9 _ PAGENO. 5
828 7 Street, Eureka % )

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors
May 14, 2020

b)

likely be about twenty percent overbudget. Director Rupp inquired if notification was received
from PG&E regarding rate increases. Ms. Harris stated no notices were received. The Board
suggested RCEA Executive Director Matthew Marshall speak to the Board regarding power.
Director Rupp suggested we also have someone from the ACWA Energy Committee speak to
the Board as well.

Director Lindberg reviewed the bills and stated all appeared in order. He was impressed with

the detail level and the number of checks. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director
Latt, the Board voted 5-0 by roll call vote to approve the April financial statement and vendor
detail in the amount of $311,630.12.

FY 2020/2021 Budget Presentation: SS and SEB budget

Ms. Harris provided an overview of the scheduled budget meetings through July 9, 2020 when

the FY 2020/21 budget will be considered and approved by the Board. The discussion for this
meeting includes the Service & Supply (SS) budget and the Salaries & Employee Benefits
(SEB) budget.

The SS budget includes: operations expenses, maintenance expenses, administration expenses
and general expenses. She noted there has been an unprecedented increase in power costs.
The average increase for FY20 through March 2020 is 12.29%. Pumping and the TRF
accounts for 97% of the power bill. Additionally, PG&E requested a rate increase of 12.4%
for 2020, 4.7% for 2021 and 4.8% for 2022. This is a major component of the SS budget. The
total proposed change to the SS budget is an increase of $85,700 or 5.5%.

Ms. Harris reviewed the salary schedule. She stated the District currently uses a 5-step salary
schedule for all full-time employees. Once at step five, the employee is at their maximum pay
level. The challenge to any government agency is to ensure their salary step schedule remains
competitive with other agencies. A “Wage and Time-Study Analysis” review is suggested.
Without the review on a regular basis the agency risks becoming outdated regarding pay and
job descriptions. The last time the District completed an analysis was in 2008. At that time,
the analysis resulted in an increase in employee pay rates beginning at five percent and up to
25%. Staff proposes to complete an in-depth Wage and Time Study as compared to other
agencies over the next six months and will bring the findings back to the Board for review and
discussion. The Board suggested staff review costs for consultants to do this.

The SEB budget includes: all salary and wage expenses, longevity, step, COLA and benefit
costs. The total proposed changes will result in an increase of $212,900 or 3.7%. Proposed
changes include adding permanent, part-time staff to the Maintenance Worker 5-step wage
schedule and a request for COLA of 3%. Ms. Harris provided the range of financial impact of
COLA from 2.5-3.3%. The COLA request is based on the CPI Index and what other local
agencies/municipalities are doing. The West Region CPI is 2.9%. The proposed total increase
to the salary and wages budget is $63,800 which is a 2.6% increase. Director Latt requested to
see the financial impact of a 1%, 1.5% and 2% COLA.

The employee benefits budget is proposed to increase by $63,400 which is a 3.8% increase.
This includes a new request from employees to keep the HSA Incentive on-going ($1,000)
rather than sunsetting after four years, an increase in CalPERS pension cost ($27,400),
Worker’s Compensation insurance ($15,000), payroll tax expenses ($2,300) and medical
insurance premiums ($17,700). Feedback from the Board was to continue the HSA incentive



828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors
May 14, 2020

as long as the total premium keeps saving the District money compared to the other PPO
plans.

A new request from employees is that the Board increase the contribution for retiree health
insurance premium and further discuss making the retirees premium a percentage of the
Family Classic PPO premium annually. Ms. Harris shared some ideas regards this but noted
that staff is not anticipating a decision regarding changing the retiree health contribution
during this budget process. The only way to get a complete picture of the impact of any
changes is to engage the services of an actuarial consultant.

c) Special Board Meeting on May 29, 2020 to discuss Project Budget
The Special Board Meeting at 9 am on May 29" will be conducted via Zoom due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. Typically, an employee barbeque follows the meeting but it will be
delayed until the Shelter In Place Order allows group activities. Director Rupp stated he has a
conflict at 9 am and inquired if the time could be changed to the afternoon. After a brief
discussion, the Board agreed to start the meeting at 1:00 pm.

d) CalPERS article re: Retirement Security
Ms. Harris stated she had no comments on the article. She included it for informational

purposes.

10.3  Operations
Mr. Davidsen provided the monthly operations report. As part of the Water Infrastructure System

Efficiency (WISE) a new meter was installed at Collector 4 however; it was not working properly
and they are up against a deadline. Staff switched out the meter and were able to get it to read
properly. There is one week of testing left with the WISE program. A rebate from PG&E should be
arriving as result of participation in the WISE program. Topics for safety meetings held include:
confined space; heat and illness prevention; lockout/tagout; and Arc Flash.

He is still running a split crew which is not the most efficient however; it is necessary at this time
due to Covid-19.

May maintenance went well and they will go back later to finish work on the hydroplant. Josiah the
new electrician is doing very well. This was his first time at Ruth and Mr. Davidsen stated he has a
great deal of confidence in him.

In regards to COVID-19, the operations staff has been diligent about wearing masks, especially
during shift change. They are sanitizing the work space regularly and it is going well overall
despite the inconvenience.

Mr. Friedenbach added the Eureka office staff is social distancing, does not have direct contact with
the public and are also sanitizing the work area on a regular basis.

11. MANAGEMENT
11.1 CSDA
Mr. Friedenbach shared the letter sent to California legislators from numerous industries regarding
Workers” Compensation and COVID-19. The letter opposes Governor Newsom’s Executive Order
stating if an employee is working and gets COVID-19, it will be presumed that it is work related.
Mr. Friedenbach stated this will be an issue across the state.




—
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICTECTION 2 PAGE NO. N
828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors
May 14, 2020

11.2 AWWA Drinking Water Week May 3-9. 2020

May 3-9, 2020 was Drinking Water Week. Mr. Friedenbach shared a screenshot from the District’s
website that explained what Drinking Water Week is and thanked the team at the District for
delivering high-quality drinking water to our communities.

12. DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION
12.1 General -comments or reports from Directors

Mr. Friedenbach shared a video of Director Lindberg receiving his District jacket. Director Lindberg
was appreciative of the jacket and thanked the Board.

Director Rupp stated he will now be able to attend the June Board meeting, but will not be present
for the July meeting.

President Woo was asked to speak on a KEET-TV special regarding Asian Americans in Humboldt
County. She brought this up since she speaks about her participation on the District Board.
Directors requested information regarding the time and date of the program.
122 ACWA
a) Spring Conference (now Summer) July 28-31, 2020
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the ACWA Conference is now virtual.

b) State Water board adopts Policy for Safe & Affordable Drinking Water Fund
The State Water Resources Control Board adopted the “Policy for Developing the Fund
Expenditure Plan for the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund.” This policy serves as the
overall guidance for how the Board will identify water systems and administer funding over the
next decade to support communities that do not have safe drinking water.

12.3 ACWA - JPIA
a) Employee Benefits-COVID-19 treatment costs

Staff shared the letter from ACW A-JPIA stating that their medical plans have been modified to

cover 100% of the cost of COVID-19 testing, and associated costs (including treatment) from
April 1,2020-May 31,2020. The dates may be extended.

b) Status update from CEO Andy Sells
Mr. Friedenbach included the update from JPIA re: work status for informational purposes.

12.4 Organizations on which HBMWD Serves: RCEA, RREDC
a) RCEA

President Woo stated they are conducting meetings via zoom and it’s going well so far.
b) RREDC

Director Latt stated RREDC did not meet last month. A special meeting is scheduled for the
upcoming Monday, May 18, 2020.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 5:40 pm

Attest:

Sheri Woo, President J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer



- HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for the Special Meeting of Board of Directors
May 29, 2020

. ROLL CALL

The Board meeting was conducted via Zoom due to COVID-19 Shelter In Place Orders. President Woo
called the meeting to order at 8:32 am. Director Rupp conducted the roll call. Directors Fuller, Latt,
Lindberg, Rupp and Woo were present. General Manager John Friedenbach, Superintendent Dale
Davidsen, Business Manager Chris Harris, Tech Manager Dee Simpson-Glenn, and Board Secretary
Sherrie Sobol were present. Legal Counsel David Aladjem was present for a portion of the meeting.

. FLAG SALUTE

The flag salute was conducted.

. ACCEPT AGENDA

On motion by Director Latt, seconded by Director Lindberg, the Board voted 5-0 by roll call vote to accept
the agenda.

. PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comment was received.

. CONTINUING BUSINESS

1. FY 2020/21 Project Budget
Staff presented and the Board discussed the proposed Project Budget in line-item detail. Given
the numerous line items to discuss, the Board suggested only reviewing projects budgeted for
$10,000 and up, unless any smaller projects are specifically called out for discussion.

The Directors asked several questions about various proposed projects which staff responded
to. During discussion regarding industrial system costs, Mr. Friedenbach stated staff will
negotiate with an industrial customer to reimburse the District or use ReMAT funds to cover
the cost for industrial system projects. Director Latt stated these are two very different paths
and he is opposed to using ratepayer funds for industrial items, i.e. subsidizing Nordic
Aquafarms. Mr. Friedenbach explained that ReMAT funds are not ratepayer funds. These
funds are intended for projects with no revenue source. Each of the Municipal Customers are
aware of and agreed to this through a specific contract amendment. Additionally, the District
does not have any industrial customers under contract at this point. When an industrial
customer is ready to sign a contract with the District this can be part of the negotiations. Staff
finished the project budget presentation and no additional concerns were expressed. The Board
thanked everyone for the work that went into the project budget process.

2. Water Resource Planning-Instream Flow Draft Petition for Change Narrative Summary
President Woo stated the Instream Flow Draft Petition for Change Narrative Summary is before the
Board for possible approval. Once approved, the committee will take the document to regulatory
agencies such as Dept. of Fish and Wildlife and National Marine Fisheries Service for their input.

Legal Counsel David Aladjem participated in the discussion. He provided a synopsis of the summary
and how it might be viewed by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). The purpose of
the document is to make it as easy as possible for the SWRCB to approve the District’s petition for
change to allow water releases for instream flow for environmental benefit. Without this change, the
District would be required to cease releasing the additional water over and above its municipal and
industrial demands, which would be detrimental to aquatic organisms and habitat. He drew the
Board’s attention to Table 1 of the report. This table summarizes the different parameters of water
rights.



- HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

SECTION_) _ PAGE No.__@___
828 7 Street, Eureka /

Minutes for the Special Meeting of Board of Directors
May 29, 2020

These are the criteria the SWRCB will use in their decision-making process. There are no

proposed changes except for the “authorized purposes and place of use” section. This is the easiest
section to change. The District is demonstrating they are being as environmentally responsible as
possible and not impending on the rights of any legal water rights user. This looks very promising

for approval. Mr. Aladjem answered several questions from the Board and Director Rupp thanked the
President Woo, Director Fuller, Mr. Aladjem and the consultants for all their hard work on the
document. Director Latt requested confirmation that this dedication does not preclude intake at Station
6. Mr. Aladjem confirmed this in that the dedication is from the release point of Matthews Dam to the
point of diversion at Essex. He noted that 20 mgd for Municipal customers is locked in and separate
from the 20 mgd for instream flow. On motion by Director Rupp seconded by Director Latt, the Board
voted 5-0 by roll call vote to approve the document, with any refinement needed by staff and submit it
to the SWRCB.

President Woo stated next steps are to discuss the draft petition with the Dept. of Fish and Wildlife,
NMEFS, Water Task Force and Water Resource Planning Advisory Committee as well as the Municipal
Customers. Director Rupp stated he and Director Latt would speak with Humboldt CSD. Mr. Aladjem
suggested the meetings be scheduled in the next few weeks to month. The Board thanked Mr. Aladjem
and he in turn stated he appreciates the time and detail put into the report.

ADJOURNMENT
President Woo adjourned the meeting at 11:52 am.

Attest:

Sheri Woo, President J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer



CONSENT



secrion ! _pacEno. |

RECORD AT THE REQUEST OF:
Ryan T. Plotz, Esq.

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:
The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP .

PO Drawer 1008
Eureka, CA 95502

(Space Above This Line For Recorder’s Office)

ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT



secTioN_(0-| _ pacE NO.. P~ ___
ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT

This Environmental Indemnity Agreement ("Agreement”) is made and entered into on , 2020 by and
between Vivid Green, LLC a California Limited Liability Company (referred to in this Agreement as “Indemnitor”) and the
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District ("Water District”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Indemnitor is the present owner of the real property commonly known as Trinity County Assessor’s Parcel
Number 020-490-04-00 (“Indemnitor’s Property™); and,

WHEREAS, the Water District is the present owner of the real property commonly known as Trinity County Assessor’s
Parcel Number 020-100-35-00 (“Water District’s Property”), which is directly adjacent to the Indemnitor’s Property; and,

WHEREAS, Indemnitor has requested that the Water District consent on an ongoing basis to a reduced, 150’ setback for
commercial cannabis growing operations including, but not limited to, cultivation on the Indemnitor’s Property; and,

WHEREAS, the Water District has agreed to consent to said variance, conditioned upon receipt of a comprehensive
environmental indemnity agreement executed by the Indemnitor.

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to induce Water District to consent to the variance described hereinabove and in consideration
of the promises contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1. Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms or phrases have the following meanings:

(a) “Environmental Conditions” means all conditions relating to Hazardous Materials (as defined below) present at or
emanating from the Indemnitor’s Property, including without limitation, the past, present, or future Release of Hazardous
Materials and their presence in the environment. This term also includes the residual contamination of equipment or Facilities
and offsite treatment, recycling, reclamation, transportation, storage, handling, or disposal of Hazardous Materials from the

Indemnitor’s Property.

(b) “Environmental Requirements” means, with respect to the Indemnitor’s Property and its operations, all federal, state, and
local laws, ordinances, regulations, rules, orders, and standards that are applicable to the Indemnitor’s Property or any
Facility, including, but not limited to, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
("CERCLA”) (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 9601 et seq.); the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act ("RCRA”) (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 6901
et seq.); the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C.A. §§ 1251 et seq.); the Clean Air Act (42 US.C.A. §§ 7401 et seq.); the Toxic
Substances Control Act ("TSCA”) (15 U.S.C.A. §§ 2601 et seq.); the Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C.A. § 300f to 300j);
the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act (42 U.S.C.A. §§ 11001 et seq.); the Hazardous Materials
Transportation Authorization Act of 1994 (49 U.S.C.A. §§ 5101 et seq.); and the Occupational Safety and Health Act (29
US.C.A. §§ 651 et seq.), as each of them have and may be amended in the future, and all regulations adopted pursuant to
those statutes. This list of statutes is not intended to be exclusive, and the parties intend this definition to be comprehensive.
“Environmental Requirements” also means any court order or judgment applicable to the Indemnitor or the Indemnitor’s
Property or any order issued by a federal, state, or local agency responsible for enforcing any Environmental Requirement.

(c) “Facility” means “facility” as defined in CERCLA § 101(9) (42 U.S.C.A. § 9601(9)).

ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT Page 1




secTion_{p-\ _pacENO._ 2 __

(d) “Hazardous Material” means any substance subject to any Environmental Requirement, including, but not limited to,
petroleum and petroleum products (excluding a small quantity of gasoline used in maintenance equipment on the
Indemnitor’s Property), flammable explosives, radioactive materials (excluding radioactive materials in smoke detectors),
polychlorinated biphenyls, asbestos in any form that is or could become friable, hazardous waste, toxic or hazardous
substances or other related materials whether in the form of a chemical element, compound, solution, mixture, or substance
defined as “hazardous substances,” “extremely hazardous substances,” “hazardous chemicals,” “hazardous materials,” “toxic
substances,” “toxic chemicals,” “air pollutants,” “toxic pollutants,” “solid wastes,” ‘“hazardous wastes,” “extremely
hazardous waste,” or “restricted hazardous waste” by any Environmental Requirement.

(e) “Notices” means citizen or governmental notices of intent to sue under an Environmental Requirement or common-law
cause of action; requests for information under the authority of an Environmental Requirement; notices of administrative
actions or orders seeking penalties, fines, or remedial activity under any Environmental Requirement; any “potentially
responsible party” letters under CERCLA; judicial complaints; notices of administrative or judicial enforcement actions
related to any Environmental Requirement; or notices of violation related to any Environmental Requirement received by the

Indemnitor.

(f) “Release” means “release” as defined in CERCLA § 101(22) (42 U.S.C.A. § 9601(22)).

ARTICLE II. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF INDEMNITOR

Section 2.1. Representations and Warranties. Indemnitor makes the following representations and warranties to the Water
District.

(a) Environmental Compliance. The Indemnitor’s Property are in compliance with all applicable Environmental
Requirements to the best of Indemnitor’s knowledge, information, and belief.

(b) Environmental Permits. Indemnitor shall, prior to commencement of any cannabis activities and, at all times during the
ongoing operation of any such activities, obtain and maintain in good standing all permits and licenses that are necessary
under the Environmental Requirements to conduct such activities.

(c) Pending or Threatened Environmental Litigation. With respect to the Indemnitor’s Property, Indemnitor has not received
any Notices with respect to any Environmental Condition, is not a defendant in any suit or proceeding concerning any
Environmental Condition, and is presently aware of no Environmental Condition existing that would give rise to any such
suit, proceeding, or claim for: (i) cleanup or other response costs arising from an Environmental Condition; (ii) personal
injury or property damage from exposure to a Hazardous Material or any Environmental Condition; or (iii) civil or criminal
penalties arising from violation of an Environmental Requirement.

(d) Environmental Conditions. There are no Environmental Conditions at the Indemnitor’s Property known by the Indemnitor
that presently, or with the passage of time may, result in a violation of an Environmental Requirement. Disclosure of an
Environmental Condition will not be an admission that the condition is a violation of any Environmental Requirement.
Indemnitor and Indemnitors must, promptly after discovery, notify Water District in writing of any other Environmental

Conditions.

ARTICLE III. COVENANTS OF INDEMNITOR AND INDEMNITORS

Section 3.1. Covenants. Indemnitor and Indemnitors covenant the following to Water District:

(a) Each of Indemnitor and Indemnitors covenants and agrees that, except where an activity is in full compliance with all
Environmental Requirements, they will not: (i) cause or permit the presence, use, release, storage (including aboveground
and underground storage tanks for petroleum or petroleum products but excluding small containers of gasoline used for
maintenance equipment or similar purposes), or disposal of any Hazardous Materials on, under, in, flowing off, or entering

ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT Page 2




SECTION_lo- | _ PAGE no. 4
onto the Indemnitor’s Property, or in any way affecting the Indemnitor’s Property; or (ii) cause or exacerbate any occurrence

or condition on the Indemnitor’s Property that is or may be in violation of any Environmental Requirement. Indemnitor and
Indemnitors must provide to Water District, upon Water District’s request and at Indemnitor’s and Indemnitors’ sole expense,

any additional information, tests, certifications, or documents as the Water District reasonably deems necessary or advisable

to investigate Indemnitor’s and Indemnitors’ compliance with the foregoing. Water District shall have the right, upon giving

of two days’ prior notice, to inspect the Indemnitor’s Property to determine compliance with the foregoing.

(b) Indemnitor must promptly notify Water District in writing of any violation of either an Environmental Requirement or the
terms of this Agreement in relation to the Indemnitor’s Property or its tenants or any condition that, with the passage of time,
may result in a violation of an Environmental Requirement or the terms of this Agreement. Indemnitor and Indemnitors agree
that if any Hazardous Materials are ever found at the Indemnitor’s Property at any time, in any form or for any use on the
Indemnitor’s Property, except when the presence is in full compliance with all Environmental Requirements, or if any
violation of an Environmental Requirement occurs with respect to the Indemnitor’s Property, Indemnitor will, within fifteen
(15) calendar days, or a lesser period as the Water District may determine is allowed by Environmental Requirements or is
necessary to protect the safety or security of the Indemnitor’s Property, at Indemnitor’s sole expense, remove or take other
action to remove the Hazardous Materials to comply with Environmental Requirements. Should Indemnitor fail to take
necessary action within the required time, Water District may make advances or payments toward its performance or
satisfaction, but is under no obligation to do so; all sums so advanced or paid will be at once repayable by Indemnitor and
will bear interest at the legal rate. The Water District will not accept or bear any responsibility for any Hazardous Materials
in, on, under, flowing off, or entering onto the Indemnitor’s Property, for the actual or threatened release of any Hazardous
Materials from the Indemnitor’s Property, or for the repair, replacement, removal, upgrade, or retrofit of any equipment or
structures, including underground or aboveground storage tanks, located on the Indemnitor’s Property.

ARTICLE IV. NOTICES TO WATER DISTRICT CONCERNING ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Section 4.1. Notices. Indemnitor must promptly notify Water District in writing of:

(a) any enforcement, cleanup, removal, or other governmental or regulatory action, investigation, or any other proceeding
instituted, completed, or threatened in connection with any Hazardous Materials in, on, under, flowing off, or entering onto

the Indemnitor’s Property;

(b) any suit, cause of action, or any other claim made or threatened by any third party against the Indemnitor or the
Indemnitors or the Indemnitor’s Property relating to damage, contribution, cost recovery, compensation, loss, or injury
resulting from any Hazardous Materials in, on, under, flowing off, or entering onto the Indemnitor’s Property; and

(c) Indemnitor’s or Indemnitors’ discovery of any occurrence or Environmental Condition on any real property adjoining or
in the vicinity of the Indemnitor’s Property that could cause all or any portion of the Indemnitor’s Property to be subject to
any restrictions on the ownership, occupancy, transferability, or use of the Indemnitor’s Property under any Environmental
Requirement. The provisions of the preceding sentence are in addition to any and all other obligations and liabilities that
Indemnitor and Indemnitors may have to Water District under applicable law.

ARTICLE V. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Section 5.1. Environmental Audit. The Water District will in its sole discretion have the right to require that Indemnitor
conduct an environmental review, no more than once per year, to assess whether the Indemnitor’s Property is in compliance
with all Environmental Requirements (the “Environmental Review”):

(a) The Indemnitor shall, following receipt of written notice as specified hereinbelow, provide Water District with any and all
documents and information reasonably requested by the Water District to perform an assessment of the Environmental

Condition of the Indemnitor’s Property.

(b) Upon receiving from Water District notice of the demand to conduct an Environmental Review, Indemnitor must, at

ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT Page 3




SECTION_(2-| _ PAGENO._D

Indemnitor’s sole expense, gather and deliver to the Water District all documents evidencing or describing Environmental
Conditions of Indemnitor’s Property, Indemnitor’s compliance with Environmental Requirements, any Hazardous Materials
being stored at or released from Indemnitor’s Property, if any, and all Notices received by Indemnitor. Said documents must
be provided to Water District within thirty (30) days of the date Indemnitor receives written notice from Water District of the

demand for an Environmental Review.

ARTICLE VI. RESPONSIBILITY FOR ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES

Section 6.1. Responsibility for Environmental Liabilities. Indemnitor agrees to comply with all Environmental Requirements
applicable to the Indemnitor’s Property as well as any activities conducted at the Indemnitor’s Property, and further agree that
they will be solely responsible for compliance with all Environmental Requirements:

(a) Environmental Liability. Indemnitor agrees that they will be jointly and severally liable for any injuries, damages, or
cleanup costs arising from any Release of a Hazardous Material originating at, or coming from, the Indemnitor’s Property,
whether or not the Release occurs on the Indemnitor’s Property.

(b) Agreement Not To Sue. Indemnitor agrees not to sue or otherwise bring any action against Water District, whether for
contribution or otherwise, concerning any matter included in the paragraphs above.

ARTICLE VII. INDEMNITY FOR ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES

Section 7.1. Indemnity. Indemnitor will indemnify, defend (with counsel approved by Water District), protect, and hold
harmless Water District, and its respective subsidiaries, affiliates, directors, assigns, and shareholders, employees, tenants,
and contractors from any claims, fees, and other triggering events set forth in paragraph (a) below, which are sought from or
asserted against Water District, as follows:

(a) Subject to paragraph (b) below, this indemnification will apply to any claims (including, without limitation, third-party
claims for personal injury or real or personal property damage), actions in court, administrative proceedings (whether formal
or informal), judgments, damages (including, without limitation, incidental, consequential, or punitive damages), penalties,
fines, liability (including sums paid in settlement of claims), costs of remediation activities, expenses (including, without
limitation, expenses of investigating and defending against assertion of such liabilities), interest, or costs, including attorney’s
fees (including any fees and expenses incurred in enforcing this indemnity), consultant’s fees, and expert’s fees.

(b) Indemnitor and Indemnitors shall provide the indemnification specified above as a result of a triggering event identified in
paragraph (a) in connection with, based on, or related to:

(i) a breach by Indemnitor of their representations and warranties or covenants or agreements set forth in this
Agreement;

(i) any Environmental Condition or violation of an Environmental Requirement, connected in any way with the
Indemnitor’s Property;

(iii) any liability caused by Indemnitor’s on or off-site transportation, storage, or disposal of Hazardous Materials; or

(iv) any Hazardous Material that may migrate, flow, leach, percolate, diffuse, or in any way move off, onto, or under
the Indemnitor’s Property.

(c) If any action, suit, or proceeding is commenced, or any claim or demand is asserted, in respect of which Water District
proposes to demand indemnification under this Agreement, Indemnitor must be notified in writing to that effect with

ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT Page 4




SECTION_[p: |_ PAGE NO. b

reasonable promptness and they will have the right to assume the entire control of the defense (including the selection of
counsel), subject to the right of Water District to participate (with counsel of its choice) in the defense, compromise, or
settlement of the action, suit, proceeding, claim, or demand. If Indemnitor assumes control of the defense, Water District may
not compromise or settle the claim without waiving indemnification unless Water District obtains the prior written consent of
Indemnitor or Indemnitors. Water District must cooperate fully in all respects with Indemnitor in any defense, compromise,
or settlement, including, without limitation, by making available all pertinent information and personnel under its control to
Indemnitor or Indemnitors. Indemnitor may not compromise or settle any action, suit, proceeding, claim, or demand (other
than, after consultation with Water District, an action, suit, proceeding, claim, or demand to be settled by the payment of
money damages or the granting of releases, provided that no such settlement or release may acknowledge liability for future
acts) without the prior written consent of Water District, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld.

ARTICLE VIII. RELEASES AND IMPAIRMENT

Section 8.1. Releases and Impairment. Each of Indemnitors agrees that its obligation to make payment in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement will not be impaired, modified, changed, released, or limited, in any manner whatsoever, by any
impairment, modification, change, release, or limitation of the liability of Indemnitor or its estate resulting from the operation
of any present or future provision of any federal, state, or local bankruptcy or insolvency laws, or from the decision of any
court, and will not be impaired, modified, changed, released, or limited by the release from this Agreement of any other
Indemnitor. This Agreement will continue to be effective or be reinstated, as the case may be, if at any time payment of any
sum under this Agreement, or any portion of it, is, pursuant to applicable law, rescinded or reduced in amount, or must
otherwise be restored or returned by Water District, whether as a “preferential transfer,” “voidable preference,” “fraudulent
conveyance,” or otherwise, all as though the reduction, payment, or restoration by the Water District had not been made.

ARTICLE IX. NOTICE OF CLAIMS AGAINST WATER DISTRICT

Section 9.1. Notice of Claims Against Water District. Water District must give written notice to Indemnitors of any action
against Water District that might give rise to a claim by Water District against Indemnitors under this Agreement. If any
action is brought against Water District, Indemnitors, at Water District’s sole option and Indemnitors’ expense, may be
required to defend against the action with counsel satisfactory to Water District and, with Water District’s sole consent and
approval, to settle and compromise any such action. However, Water District may elect to be represented by separate counsel,
at Water District’s expense, and if Water District so elects, any settlement or compromise will be affected only with the
consent of Water District. Water District may elect to join and participate in any settlements, remedial actions, legal
proceedings, or other actions included in connection with any claims under this Agreement.

ARTICLE X. CONSENT TO VARIANCE; TERMINATION; EFFECTIVE DATE OF ENVIRONMENTAL
INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS

Section 10.1. Consent to Variance

Promptly following the execution of this Agreement, the Water District shall execute a letter consenting to the Indemnitor’s
variance in the form of Exhibit A hereto and deliver the original of the same to the Indemnitor;

Section 10.2. Termination of Consent to Variance

The Water District shall not, revoke its consent to the variance described herein except in the following circumstances:

(a) The Water District sells, transfers, or assigns the Water District’s Property and is no longer the owner thereof; or,

(b) The Indemnitor defaults in its obligations this agreement in any fashion, fails to comply with any and all applicable
Environmental Requirements, causes a release of Hazardous Materials, or fails to comply with any Notices and fails
to remedy its default, failure of compliance, release, or compliance issues within sixty days of receiving written
Notice thereof from the Water District.

ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT Page 5




SECTION_{p| _paGENO._F

Section 10.3. Effective Date of Environmental Indemnity Obligations

The effectiveness of Indemnitor’s environmental indemnity obligations and all other obligations of Indemnitor, under
Articles III through IX of this Agreement, is expressly conditioned upon (a) Indemnitor’s receiving the requested Variance
from the County of Trinity, and (b) Indemnitor’s receipt of a commercial cannabis cultivation permit from the County of
Trinity for which the set-back Variance is required.

ARTICLE XI. NO WAIVER

Section 11.1. No Waiver. Indemnitor’s and Indemnitors’ obligations under this Agreement will in no way be impaired,
reduced, or released by reason of:

(a) Water District’s omission or delay to exercise any right described in this Agreement; or

(b) any act or omission of Water District in connection with any notice, demand, warning, or claim regarding violations of
codes, laws, or ordinances governing the Indemnitor’s Property.

ARTICLE XII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 12.1. Survival. The obligations of Indemnitor under this Agreement, including their representations and warranties,
will survive the termination of the Indemnitor’s variance and will be continuing for so long as Water District has any actual,
potential, or threatened liability with respect to the Indemnitor’s Property under any Hazardous Material Law. The rights of
Water District under this Agreement are in addition to any other rights and remedies of Water District against any Indemnitor
under any other document or instrument executed now or at any later time by such Indemnitor, or at law or in equity
(including, without limitation, any right of reimbursement or contribution pursuant to an Environmental Requirement), and
will not in any way be deemed a waiver of any of those rights.

Section 12.2. Binding Effect. Indemnitor agrees that this Agreement will be continuing, irrevocable, and binding on and
enforceable against the Indemnitor and Indemnitors and their respective legal representatives, administrators, and heirs. The
death or dissolution of any one or more of Indemnitor will not affect this Agreement or any of the parties’ obligations under
it. It is agreed by Indemnitor and Indemnitors that their respective liabilities under this Agreement are not contingent on the

signature of any other party.

Section 12.3. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties respecting the matters set
forth in it and supersedes all prior agreements between the parties with regard to those matters.

Section 12.4. Modification. No amendment or other modification, rescission, release, or annulment of any part of this
Agreement will be effective except pursuant to a written agreement subscribed by the duly authorized representatives of

Indemnitor and Water District.

Section 12.5. Delegation. Indemnitor’s obligations under this Agreement may not be assigned or delegated without the
express written consent of the Water District.

Section 12.6. Waiver. Water District may waive rights, powers, or privileges under this Agreement; provided, that any waiver
must be in writing; and further provided, that no failure or delay on the part of Indemnitees to exercise any right, power, or
privilege under this Agreement will operate as a waiver of that right, power, or privilege, nor will any single or partial
exercise of any right, power, or privilege under this Agreement preclude any other or further exercise of that right, power, or
privilege or the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege by Water District under the terms of this Agreement, nor will
any waiver operate or be construed as a future waiver of a right, power, or privilege under this Agreement.

ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT Page 6




secTion_(p:|_pace no._®B

Section 12.7. Severability. If any provision or portion of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will nevertheless continue in full force and effect without being impaired
or invalidated in any way; provided, however, that there will be deemed to be made in any invalid or unenforceable provision
or portion of any invalid or unenforceable provision minor changes, and only those minor changes, as are necessary to make

it valid and enforceable.

Section 12.8. Captions. Any captions to the sections or subsections of this Agreement are solely for the convenience of the
parties, are not a part of this Agreement, and will not be used for the interpretation or determination of validity of this

Agreement, or any provisions of it.

Section 12.9. Further Assurances. In addition to the instruments and documents to be made, executed, and delivered pursuant
to this Agreement, the parties agree to make, execute, and deliver, or cause to be made, executed, and delivered, to the
requesting party any other instruments and to take any other actions as the requesting party may reasonably require to carry
out the terms of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated by it.

Section 12.10. Notice of Bankruptcy or Insolvency. If any of Indemnitor becomes bankrupt or insolvent, or any application is
made to have any of such parties declared bankrupt or insolvent, or a receiver or trustee is appointed for any of such parties
or for all or a substantial part of the property of any of such parties, or any of such parties makes an assignment for the
benefit of Water District, notice of the occurrence or event must be promptly furnished to Water District by any such party.

Section 12.11. Notices. Any notice that a party is required or may desire to give the other must be in writing and may be sent
by personal delivery or by mail by United States registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid
addressed as follows (subject to the right of a party to designate a different address for itself by notice similarly given):

To Indemnitors: To Water District:

Vivid Green, LLC : Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
1647 Willow Pass Rd., #182 PO Box 95

Concord, CA 94520 Eureka, CA 95502-0095

With Copy to: With Copy to:

Dustin E. Owens, Esq. Ryan T. Plotz, Esq.

Owens & Ross The Mitchell Law Firm, LLP

310 Third Street, Suite D 426 1%t St.

Eureka, CA 95501 Eureka, CA 95501

Any notice so given by mail will be deemed to have been given as of the date of delivery (whether accepted or refused)
established by United States Post Office return receipt or by the overnight carrier’s proof of delivery, as the case may be. Any
notice not so given will be deemed given on its receipt by the party to whom it is to be given.

Section 12.12. Attorney Fees. In the event of any litigation or arbitration to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the
prevailing party in the litigation or arbitration will be entitled to recover from the other party the prevailing party’s costs of
litigation or arbitration, including without limitation reasonable attorney’s fees.

Section 12.13. Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed and interpreted in accordance with the
laws of the State of California.

ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT Page 7




SECTION |- | _PaGENO._9l__

Section 12.14. Consents. The persons signing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the necessary power,
consent, and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of each of the parties.

Section 12.15. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by each party
on separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered will be deemed an original and all of which taken
together will constitute but one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized representatives on the date
written above.

Water District:

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT

)

Indemnitor:

VIVID GREEN LLC
By: /\QR W&g'

Name: Ivan Nanev

Its: Authorized Member

ENVIRONMENTAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT Page 8



SecTION_(p: | _pacENO._10__
CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT o

A notary public or other officer completing this
certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this
certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

County of Humboldt
On before me, JulieAnne M. Shull-Pruyn, Notary Public ,

DATE NAME, TITLE OF OFFICER - E.G., "JANE DOE, NOTARY PUBLIC"
personally appeared Ivan Nanev ,
NAME(S) OF SIGNER(S)
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are-subscribed to
the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/shefifrey executed the same in his/herftheir/authorized
capacity(ies), and that by his/hes#hetr signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

/

LRI,

m JULIEANNE M. SHULL-PRUYN

% COMM. # 2162665 g

53 NOTARY PUBLIC e CALIFORNIA O

v 74 HUMBOLDT COUNTY -

_Exp. 14,2 g
C".,;”JS‘“AE-“&,AHEN 2020

(NOTARY SEAL)

SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PUBLIC

OPTIONAL

Though the data below is not required by law, it may prove valuable to persons relying on the document and could
prevent fraudulent reattachment of this form.

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHED DOCUMENT
3 INDIVIDUAL
] CORPORATE OFFICER
TITLE OR TYPE OF DOCUMENT

TITLE(S)

[} PARTNER(S) 3 LIMITED
3 GENERAL

(3 ATTORNEY-IN-FACT NUMBER OF PAGES

] TRUSTEE(S)
(] GUARDIAN/CONSERVATOR
[ OTHER

DATE OF DOCUMENT

SIGNER IS REPRESENTING:

NAME OF PERSON(S) OR ENTITY(IES) SIGNER(S) OTHER THAN NAMED ABOVE
o269 CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT Page 1 or1

12 | Essential



A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss.

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT )

On June 4, 2020, before me, Kathy A. Radford, Notary Public, personally
appeared JOHN FRIEDENBACH, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted,

executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of
California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal: ' 7 1/
: 7 3 Notary Public - California (= / Vi P iFaN L } !,, %
J U

/
\5‘ =z /‘
% Humboldt County s D, i
Commission # 2304605

ot My Comm. Expires Oct 9, 2023

Place Notary Seal Above



828 SEVENTH STREET, PO BOX 95 ¢« EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918

FAX 707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE @HBMWD.COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERI WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

DAVID LINDBERG, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

June 4, 2020

Kim Hunter, Director

Trinity County Planning Department
PO Box 2819

Weaverville, CA 96093-2819

Dear Ms. Hunter,

The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District is the owner of Trinity County APN 020-100-
35-00. 1, John Friedenbach, am the Water District's general manager.

On behalf of the Water District, please accept this letter as the Water District's consent
and permission, for its neighbor Vivid Green, LLC who owns adjoining Trinity County APN
020-490-04-00 to allow a reduced 150’ setback for commercial cannabis growing operations
on that property. It is my understanding that they intend to apply for a variance that would
allow them to conduct cannabis operations including, but not limited to, cultivation, with a
reduced set back of 150 feet (compared to the normal 500’ setback) from the Water
District’s property line.

On behalf of the Water District, | consent to such a variance. Kindly include our office on
correspondence regarding the variance application hearing.

b

John Friedenbach
General Manager

Cc: Dustin Owens
Ryan Plotz

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WAT SR eaiiie L —



California Dept. of Water Resources

Dam Safety and the Importance of the Division of Safety of

Dams with Andy Mangney
Published: June 01, 2020

- = =)
i g : L

T o

0 Aerial view of Pyramid Dam in
“ Los Angeles County.
DWR/2019

The California Department of Water Resources, Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD) oversees
the California Dam Safety Program that regulates approximately 1,250 dams in California. At
the forefront of DSOD’s oversight is public safety. DSOD inspects dams on an annual basis to
ensure they are safe and are performing as intended. DSOD also conducts independent reviews
of applications for dam construction, removal, alteration or repair, has inspection oversight over
dam construction projects, and periodically reviews the stability of dams and their critical related
structures in light of improved design approaches and requirements. DSOD works closely with
dam owners to identify and correct issues on an ongoing basis.

In recognition of National Dam Safety Awareness Day, Andy Mangney who serves as the Field
Engineering Branch Chief overseeing DSOD’s dam inspection and monitoring program, took
some time to answer questions about what DSOD is doing to protect Californians.

What is your background and experience?

I received a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from Cal Poly, San Luis Obispo in
1993 and a Master of Science Degree in Civil Engineering from Sacramento State University in
2002.

I started working for DWR in late-1993 as a Junior Civil Engineer on the construction of the
Coastal Branch of the California Aqueduct. This was a dream job for me out of college; I loved
working outside and inspecting construction and troubleshooting issues on civil structures as
they were being built. This job was pivotal in my chosen career path to work more in civil



secTion (22 pace No._

engineering jobs geared toward field work rather than the office. I started working for DSOD in
1997 where I have progressed through various positions in the Field Engineering Branch, making
my way up to the Field Engineering Branch Chief.

How are dams built and how do they work?

Dams are constructed of soil/rock or concrete and every structure is unique. Some major factors
that are considered in the determination of the type of dam are cost, location, availability of
materials to build the dam, and site geology. A dam serves as an impermeable water barrier, and
it must be robust enough to withstand the pressure of water against it and extreme pressures that
can occur from earthquakes and floods.

Besides the dam structure, critical structures are also required, such as outlets that move water
out of the reservoir and spillways that bypass flood flows to prevent dam overtopping.

Who owns the dams in California?

Dams are owned by the State of California, water agencies and districts, counties, cities,
homeowner’s associations, private companies, or private citizens. Roughly half of the dams
under DSOD’s jurisdiction are privately owned. Dams are also owned by the federal
government, but these dams are not under DSOD jurisdiction.

Andy Mangney, Chief of Division of Safety of Dams Field Engineering Branch, Department of
Water Resources. DWR Photo.

What are common causes leading to dam failures and incidents?

In California, we are fortunate that dam failures and incidents are extremely rare, in part due the
robustness of California’s Dam Safety Program, which is the largest state dam safety program in
the United States. Failures or incidents can be caused by deterioration due to age, poor
construction techniques and materials, unfavorable geologic conditions, and lack of
maintenance. Dam overtopping, or water flowing uncontrolled over the top of the dam, can also
occur due to factors including poor reservoir operations, extreme weather, or an inadequate or no
spillway. Earthquakes pose the largest risk to dams in California because the State is situated in
a high seismic area that has more frequent and larger earthquakes compared to the rest of the
country.

What are the issues facing dam safety in California?

Aging infrastructure and lack of money to fund necessary studies and retrofits of dams. About 75
percent of the approximate 1,250 regulated dams are more than 50 years old and some dams
have outlived their design life or do not meet current dam safety standards. Today in California,
few new dams are being constructed, and much of the emphasis is spent on retrofitting and
rebuilding existing dams so they meet current dam safety standards.

How does DSOD conduct dam inspections?

Every dam is unique and has different features that we inspect. DSOD has rigorous inspection
processes for each dam. DSOD typically walks the entire facility, including the top of the dam,
the downstream slopes, the area below the dam, and any critical related structures looking for



secTionl0?  pace NO.2

) 00 i g S Y o s o

changes in the dam’s condition or performance -- such as signs of new instability or leakage. We
also inspect the outlet works to ensure that the reservoir can be drained in a dam emergency and
the spillway remains clear and unimpeded to pass flood flows. Upon returning to the office, the
DSOD engineer writes a comprehensive inspection report documenting their findings,
recommendations, and conclusions on the safety of the dam, which is provided to the dam
owner.

What happens when DSOD finds an issue? What kind of action is required by a dam
owner?

If the DSOD engineer identifies a dam safety concern, corrective action is required of the dam
owner at the owner’s expense. Minor maintenance issues such as vegetation removal generally
need to be completed in about six months, but a significant issue such as a stability issue or a
problem with the outlet works may require immediate attention.

DSOD may require interim risk reduction measures such as lowering the reservoir level or
temporary repairs, if necessary. For the more complex issues beyond routine maintenance, the
dam owner is required to employ an engineer to work with DSOD to address the issue. In rare
cases where a safety issue is not addressed in a timely manner, reservoir restrictions are imposed
and/or enforcement is pursued.

What are the most recent advancements in dam safety?

The greatest advancements are probably in the understanding of how dams perform under
normal and extreme loading conditions such as earthquakes and floods.

Some of these advancements are from modern computer tools that allow for much more
sophisticated engineering evaluations. Others are due to advancements and research in the field
of engineering, and from real world case histories from dam incidents and failures. This research
helps us better understand the engineering properties of materials used to build the dam and its
critical structures, but also helps us understand the materials below these structures.



ScienceDally

Science News
from research organizations

Estuaries are warming at twice the rate of oceans and

atmosphere

Study of 166 rivers, lakes and lagoons in Australia shows fisheries face big
challenges

April 14, 2020
Source: University of Sydney
Summary:

A 12-year study of 166 estuaries in south-east Australia shows that the waters of lakes, creeks,
rivers and lagoons increased 2.16 degrees in temperature and increased acidity. Researchers say
this could impact economic activity and biodiversity worldwide.

Estuaries on the south-east coast of Australia are warming at twice the rate of
oceans and the atmosphere, a new study has found.

Researchers say the apparent accelerated impact from climate change on estuaries could adversely
affect economic activity and ecological biodiversity in rivers and lakes worldwide.

Dr Elliot Scanes from the University of Sydney said: "Our research shows that estuaries are
particularly vulnerable to a warming environment. This is a concern not only for the marine and bird
life that rely on them but the millions of people who depend on rivers, lakes and lagoons for their
livelihoods around the world."

The researchers say that changes in estuarine temperature, acidity and salinity are likely to reduce
the global profitability of aquaculture and wild fisheries. Global aquaculture is worth $US243.5 billion
a year and wild fisheries, much of which occurs in estuaries, is worth $US152 billion. More than 55
million people globally rely on these industries for income.

Professor Pauline Ross, who leads the research group in the School of Life and Environmental
Sciences, said: "Estuaries provide services of immense ecological and economic value. The rates of
change observed in this study may also jeopardise the viability of coastal vegetation such as
mangroves and saltmarsh in the coming decades and reduce their capacity to mitigate storm
damage and sea-level rise."

The results are based on 12 years of recording temperatures in 166 estuaries along the entire 1100-
kilometre stretch of the New South Wales coast in south-eastern Australia. In that time more than
6200 temperature observations were taken.

The data, which are publicly available, were taken by field officers of the NSW Department of
Planning, Industry and the Environment and used in a marine research collaboration with the
University of Sydney.



d
secrion U2 paceno. D

e

On average, the estuary systems experienced a 2.16-degree temperature increase, about 0.2
degrees each year.

Dr Elliot Scanes said: "This is evidence that climate change has arrived in Australia; it is not a
projection based on modelling, but empirical data from more than a decade of investigation."

Studies on specific lake and river systems have found evidence of warming, such as along the North
Sea, in Germany, in the Hudson River in New York and Chesapeake Bay, Maryland. This is the
world's first long-term study that has considered a diverse range of estuary types on such a large
scale.

It is published today in Nature Communications.

"This increase in temperature is an order of magnitude faster than predicted by global ocean and
atmospheric models," Dr Elliot Scanes said.

According to the Australian Bureau of Meteorology, air and sea temperatures in Australia have
increased by about 1 degree since 1910. And over the past decade, air temperatures have increase
1.5 degrees as compared to the 1961 to 1990 average.

"Our results highlight that air or ocean temperatures alone cannot be relied upon to estimate climate
change in estuaries; rather, individual traits of any estuary need to be considered in the context of
regional climate trends," Dr Elliot Scanes said.

"New models will need to be developed to help predict estuarine changes."

The study also found that acidification of estuaries was increasing by 0.09 pH units a year. There
was also changes to the salinity of estuary systems: creeks and lagoons became less saline while
river salinity increased.

Temperature increases in estuaries were also dependent on the type, or morphology of the system,
the study found.

Professor Ross said: "Lagoons and rivers increased in temperature faster than creeks and lakes
because they are shallower with more limited ocean exchange."

She said that this suggests industries and communities that rely on shallow estuaries for culture,
income and food could be particularly vulnerable during global warming.

"This is of concern in other dry temperate zones like the Mediterranean and South Africa where
many of the estuaries are similar to those studied here," she said.

The study suggests that estuaries that remain open may also soon begin to "tropicalise," and
estuarine ecosystems could become colonised by tropical marine species and reflect a warmer
environment.

Professor Ross said: "This research will help local fisheries and aquaculture to develop mitigation
strategies as the climate changes."

Story Source:

Materials provided by University of Sydney. Note: Content may be edited for style and length.

Journal Reference:

1. Elliot Scanes, Peter R. Scanes, Pauline M. Ross. Climate change rapidly warms and acidifies
Australian estuaries. Nature Communications, 2020; 11 (1) DOI: 10.1038/s41467-020-15550-z



sEcTIoN (g2 _paci No, L2

LETTER: State Water Board rejects Reclamation’s
Sacramento River Temperature Management Plan

Maven

June 2, 2020

Yesterday, the Executive Director of the State Water Resources Control Board sent a letter to
Ernest Conant at the Bureau of Reclamation informing them that the State Water Board is
rejecting Reclamation’s submitted Sacramento River Temperature Management Plan, citing
insufficient information to make a well-informed decision.

The letter states, “Order 90-5 requires Reclamation to take actions reasonably within its control
to protect winter-run Chinook salmon and other native species from elevated temperatures and
other adverse conditions created by Reclamation’s operations on the Sacramento River. State
Water Board staff repeatedly requested that Reclamation provide information on operational
scenarios other than those proposed in Reclamation’s TMP that could allow for better
temperature control. Unfortunately, Reclamation has failed to provide the requested
information. This information is needed to inform adequate temperature management. Since
Reclamation has declined to provide the information, the State Water Board does not have
sufficient information to make a well-informed decision on Reclamation’s final TMP. We are
therefore unable to approve the TMP, and object to the plan.”

The 13-page letter reminds Reclamation that in 2014 and 2015, temperatures were not
maintained at protective levels below Shasta and Keswick Reservoirs, resulting in near total
mortality of winter-run in those years and the near extinction of the species and this year’s
hydrology is very similar to the hydrology the region faced in 2013, the year before temperature
control was lost, and the operations proposed by Reclamation in its TMP are very similar to
Reclamation’s 2013 operations, the letter states. Furthermore, Reclamation’s own submitted
estimates of temperature dependent mortality indicates these operations would result in a
temperature dependent mortality of 28 percent, which is ‘concerning; to State Water Board staff
considering the poor condition of winter-run Chinook salmon.

“In the spirit of cooperative federalism, we expect that Reclamation will provide the information
we requested. In order to be in a position to potentially improve temperature conditions this
year, the State Water Board needs the requested analyses within 20 days from the date of this
letter. If this information is provided timely, we will reevaluate the TMP and consider approval
at that time.”



SECTION [« 7 _ PAGE NO._

N e Buowreo
Water Boards o

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

State Water Resources Controi Board
June 1, 2020

Ernest A. Conant

Mid-Pacific Regional Director
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
econant@usbr.gov

ORDER 90-5 SACRAMENTO RIVER TEMPERATURE MANAGEMENT

Dear Mr. Conant:

This letter responds to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation’s (Reclamation) May 20, 2020
submittal of a final 2020 Sacramento River Temperature Management Plan (TMP)
pursuant to State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board or Board) Water
Right Order 90-5. Additionally, the attached appendix addresses certain issues raised
in Reclamation’s May 11, 2020 comment letter to the State Water Board related to the

draft TMP.

Order 90-5 requires Reclamation to take actions reasonably within its control to protect
winter-run Chinook salmon and other native species from elevated temperatures and
other adverse conditions created by Reclamation’s operations on the Sacramento River.
State Water Board staff repeatedly requested that Reclamation provide information on
operational scenarios other than those proposed in Reclamation’s TMP that could allow
for better temperature control. Unfortunately, Reclamation has failed to provide the
requested information. This information is needed to inform adequate temperature
management. Since Reclamation has declined to provide the information, the State
Water Board does not have sufficient information to make a well-informed decision on
Reclamation’s final TMP. We are therefore unable to approve the TMP, and object to

the plan.!

In the spirit of cooperative federalism, we expect that Reclamation will provide the
information we requested. In order to be in a position to potentially improve
temperature conditions this year, the State Water Board needs the requested analyses
within 20 days from the date of this letter. If this information is provided timely, we will
reevaluate the TMP and consider approval at that time.

' The decision on Reclamation’s TMP is made pursuant to authority delegated to the Executive Director of
the State Water Board, and does not necessarily reflect the views of all of the State Water Board

Members.
E. Joaquin EsQuiveL, cHaiR | EiLEEN SOBECK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

1001 i Street, Sacramento, CA 85814 | Mailing Address: P.O. Box 100, Sacramento, CA 95812-0100 | www.waterboards.ca.gov

+F

B



SECTION[¢: % _ PAGE NO.

Background

Operations of Shasta Reservoir and associated facilities are not only critically important
to California’s water supply but also to the protection of winter-run Chinook salmon,
which is one of the state’s most endangered salmon species. Prior to construction of
Shasta Dam, winter-run Chinook salmon spawning and early rearing habitat
encompassed approximately 200 miles of snow-fed cold water streams in the upper
reaches of the Sacramento River and its tributaries. These stream systems remained
cold throughout the year, which protected salmon eggs and emergent fry from heat-
induced mortality. With the construction and operation of Shasta and Keswick Dams,
winter-run Chinook salmon no longer have access to this historic cold water habitat and
are instead limited to a small stretch of the Sacramento River below Keswick Dam,
where cooler temperatures are dependent on reservoir releases.

A number of controllable and uncontrollable factors contribute to temperatures below
Keswick Dam, including the volumes of cold water that are affected by runoff and the
timing and volume of releases from Shasta Reservoir, imports of water from the Trinity
River system, temperature control device and side gate operations, power supply
operations, air temperatures, and tributary inflow volumes and temperature in
downstream reaches.

For the last several decades, winter-run Chinook salmon have teetered on the verge of
extinction, due in large part to elevated temperature conditions in their sole remaining
habitat, which is below Keswick Dam. The winter-run Chinook salmon population
declined from over 100,000 fish in the late 1960s to fewer than 200 in the early 1990s
(Yoshiyama et al. 1998).2 These dramatic population declines led to the State Water
Board’s adoption of Order 90-5 that requires Reclamation to take actions reasonably
within its control to protect winter-run and other native species from elevated
temperatures and other adverse conditions created by Reclamation’s operations on the
Sacramento River.

In 2014 and 2015, temperatures were not maintained at protective levels below Shasta
and Keswick Reservoirs, resulting in near total mortality of winter-run in those years and
the near extinction of the species. Extinction of the winter-run was likely only avoided
by maintaining high levels of hatchery production. In those years, adequate reservoir
storage and cold water pool levels in Shasta Reservoir needed for temperature control
were not maintained. Reclamation’s modeling and monitoring was also inadequate to
inform regulatory agency decision making and adjustments to operations that could
have allowed for adequate temperature management.

This year's hydrology is very similar to the hydrology the region faced in 2013, the year
before temperature control was lost. Over the last 21 years, every year with similar

2 Yoshiyama, R. M., Fisher, F. W., & Moyle, P. B. (1998). Historical abundance and decline of chinook
salmon in the Central Valley region of California. North American Journal of Fisheries Management,
18(3), 487-521.



-3-

hydrology to this year was followed by another dry year. This observed pattern
supports the importance of planning for and maintaining carryover storage levels this
year. The operations proposed by Reclamation in its TMP are very similar to
Reclamation’s 2013 operations. And in fact, Reclamation’s cold water pool estimates
are already diverging from Reclamation’s modeling. The volumes of coldest water in
Shasta Reservoir are more than 10 percent lower than what was modeled less than two
weeks ago. In addition, the current volumes of coldest water less than 48 degrees F in
Shasta Reservoir are similar to the low levels experienced in 2014. This raises
concerns that temperature conditions could already be deteriorating relative to
Reclamation’s TMP and could continue to do so. Recent science from the National
Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) (Daniels and Danner, 2020)3 shows that dam
discharge temperature from Shasta Reservoir has a greater effect on Sacramento River
temperature than discharge volume, which suggests that reduced releases may be an
effective tool in extending cold water pool resources, particularly if accurate information
regarding cold water pool volumes and supporting modeling are available to inform
regulatory decisions.

Given the conditions this year, the State Water Board asked Reclamation to evaluate
scenarios that may improve temperature control and carryover storage going into next
year, including reduced water deliveries under Reclamation’s water rights, allowing
Reclamation to retain more water in storage for the protection of cold water pool.
Modifications to the volume and timing of imports from the Trinity River, and
adjustments to power operations could also be considered.

Since this information is needed to inform adequate temperature management, and
Reclamation failed to provide it, the State Water Board cannot approve the TMP. In the
interim, although the State Water Board objects to the current plan, we do not expect,
recommend, or require that Reclamation meet 56 degrees Fahrenheit (F) at the Red
Bluff Diversion Dam (RBDD), as that would not be the best use of the limited Shasta
Reservoir cold water pool. Instead, Reclamation should take every action in its
reasonable control to protect native fish in the Sacramento River with an emphasis on
actions that optimize protection of the winter-run Chinook salmon fishery downstream of
Keswick Dam and provide for improved storage conditions going into next year. We also
encourage Reclamation to work with the Sacramento River Settlement Contractors and
other watershed stakeholders to implement voluntary measures that could improve
fishery conditions, such as adjusting the timing of fall diversions.

Regulatory Background

Order WR 90-5 requires Reclamation to operate Keswick Dam, Shasta Dam, and the
Spring Creek Power Plant to meet a daily average water temperature of 56 degrees F
on the Sacramento River at RBDD during periods when higher temperatures will be
detrimental to fish. If there are factors beyond Reclamation’s reasonable control that

3 Daniels, M. E., & Danner, E. M. (2020). The Drivers of River Temperatures Below a Large Dam. Water
Resources Research, 56(5), e2019WR026751.

I o o e s



SECTION(0-D_ PAGE NO._

-4-

prevent Reclamation from meeting 56 degrees F at RBDD, Reclamation, in consultation
with staff from the State Water Board, fisheries agencies, and the Western Area Power
Administration, may develop a plan and propose that the compliance point be moved
upstream. The State Water Board has 10 days to consider the TMP (which is June 1
this year due to the 10 day period ending on the weekend).

Under the 2019 Reclamation Biological Assessment and associated 2019 NMFS
Biological Opinion, Reclamation proposes to operate to meet a temperature between
53.5 degrees F and 56 degrees F or higher at a compliance point 41 miles upstream of
RBDD at Clear Creek (CCR). In the TMP, Reclamation is identifying a compliance
location in addition to CCR for meeting 56 degrees F at times that 56 degrees F is not
proposed at CCR as the compliance location for Order 90-5. Water temperatures
generally increase incrementally downstream of Keswick Dam until an equilibrium
temperature is reached. Accordingly, providing a temperature of 56 degrees F at a
downstream location like RBDD provides cooler temperatures upstream. Meeting a
temperature of 56 degrees F at RBDD would generally provide cooler temperatures
than 63.5 at CCR.

Reclamation’s 2020 TMP

This year, Reclamation is proposing to meet the following temperature compliance
points:

e End of May through end of June, 2020: 53.5 degrees F at CCR and 56 degrees F
at Balls Ferry

e End of June through middle of September, 2020: 54 degrees F at CCR and 56
degrees F at Balls Ferry

e Middle of September to the end of October, 2020: 56 degrees F at CCR

Reclamation submitted estimates of temperature dependent mortality indicating that
these operations would be expected to result in stage independent temperature
dependent mortality of 28 percent (with stage dependent temperature dependent
mortality of 15 to 16 percent).* Estimates of temperature dependent mortality provided

4 While State Water Board staff recognizes the efforts of Anderson (2018) in adapting the temperature
dependent model from Martin et al. (2017) to develop stage dependent mortality estimates for optimizing
use of cold water during the temperature management season, this model may underestimate
temperature dependent mortality. Martin et al. (2017) shows that temperature related mortality of eggs
can occur earlier than the critical age used in Anderson (2018), and that lower temperatures for only a
portion of the incubation period may not be sufficiently protective. Together with a historical reduction in
the length of the temperature management reach and a lack of protection for fish that emerge after
October 31 through mid-November, underestimating temperature mortality during the early stages of egg
development could lead to management actions that further impact wild winter-run Chinook salmon stock
and its genetic diversity. (Martin, B. T., Pike, A., John, S. N., Hamda, N., Roberts, J., Lindley, S. T., &
Danner, E. M. (2017). Phenomenological vs. biophysical models of thermal stress in aquatic eggs.
Ecology letters, 20(1), 50-59; Anderson, J. J. (2018). Using river temperature to optimize fish incubation
metabolism and survival: a case for mechanistic models. bioRxiv, 257154).



. SECTION (92 PAGE vo WL

by Reclamation on May 27, 2020 (Table 1), show similar results for mean/median stage
independent mortality with a possible lower and upper range of less than 1 percent to
nearly 70 percent.

Table 1: Estimated temperature-dependent egg mortality under different scenarios assuming a
2012-2019 spatial and temporal redd distribution using output from RAFT and interpolated
HEC-5Q water temperature models,

Scenario MODEL Mean Median Lower Upper

(%) (%) (%) (%)
MAY_26_2020_INPUT_90_OUTPUT_90_2513MTO . _ 20,63 2757 0.08 696
MAY_26_2020_INPUT_80_OUTPUT_90_2513MTO . .o Lo\ 2216 0.1 672

While the mortality levels expected from the TMP are generally consistent with that
expected for a Tier 3 year described in the 2019 Biological Opinion (median mortality of
24 percent) 3, the projected temperature dependent mortality rate of approximately 28
percent is concerning to State Water Board staff considering the poor condition of
winter-run Chinook salmon and other natural and anthropogenic causes of mortality that
will affect these fish. Uncertainties concerning mortality rates and operations could also
result in higher levels of mortality. Accordingly, approaches that could lower mortality
and improve carryover storage conditions for next year merit consideration.

Evaluation of Alternative Operational Scenarios

Reclamation evaluated many scenarios in developing the initial draft TMP; however,
Reclamation only evaluated possible modifications to temperature shutter operations
that all included similar levels of mortality, or scenarios that would not be recommended
due to uncertainties with the ability to provide temperature control throughout the
temperature control season. Reclamation did not evaluate any other actions that could
improve temperature conditions, including possible changes to the timing or volume of
releases, modifications to Trinity River imports, or power production operations to
evaluate the possibility for more protective temperature conditions.

In response to an earlier draft of the TMP, State Water Board staff requested that
Reclamation evaluate scenarios in which volumes of water equivalent to reductions in
deliveries to exchange contractors and refuges that occur under the current Shasta
Critical year conditions are backed up in to storage in Shasta Reservoir. The purpose
of Board staff’s request was multi-fold: to evaluate whether conservation of water in
Shasta Reservoir would improve temperature management this year; to avoid the
higher end of possible temperature dependent mortality estimates; to evaluate whether
the additional stored water would benefit carryover storage conditions going into next
year; and to better understand the supply side and system management tradeoffs that
would result from additional Shasta storage. Recognizing the interconnected nature of

> The 2017 NMFS proposed Biological Opinion amendments, although never finalized, recommended that
temperature dependent mortality not exceed 8 percent in this type of year.



SECTION (9:2)_, PAGE No

-6-

the water supply system and the potential for unintended consequences of modifying
project operations, State Water Board staff also asked Reclamation to include
information regarding the tradeoffs associated with lower releases and information
regarding why Reclamation does not recommend such operations.

Reclamation has declined to evaluate additional operational scenarios. Reclamation’s
position is that scenarios with different operational assumptions would be inconsistent
with its contractual obligations, and are therefore beyond Reclamation’s reasonable
control. The State Water Board disagrees. To the extent that Reclamation delivers
water under its own water rights, Reclamation’s obligation to deliver water to its
contractors does not take precedence over its permit obligations. Order WR 90-5
requires Reclamation to reduce releases to the extent reasonable and necessary to
control water temperature. This permit condition is not and cannot be nullified by a
contractual obligation. Reclamation’s water supply contractors are not entitled to more
water under their contracts than Reclamation is authorized to deliver consistent with the
terms and conditions of its water right permits and licenses. (See United States v. State
Water Resources Control Bd. (1986) 182 Cal.App.3d 82, 145-148; State Water
Resources Control Board Cases (2006) 136 Cal.App.4th 674, 806, fn. 54; see also
Order WR 92-02, p. 9, fn. 3 [compliance with Order WR 90-5 may require adjustments
to water deliveries, which are controllable factors, and water should not be considered
available for delivery if it is needed as carryover to maintain an adequate cold water

pool].)

Reclamation’s May 11 letter also suggested that the Board intends “to evaluate or take
action on water rights held by parties other than Reclamation, in particular the
Sacramento River Settlement Contractors, the San Joaquin River Exchange
Contractors, and wildlife refuges . ...” That is not the case. The Board's April 29,
2020 letter was intended to clarify that none of the operational scenarios the Board
seeks to evaluate would impact the natural or abandoned flows to which senior riparian
or appropriative water right holders may be entitled, including the settlement and
exchange contractors.

The Board appreciates the willingness of Reclamation and the Sacramento River
Settlement Contractors to continue to discuss this and other legal issues pertaining to
compliance with Order WR 90-5. For purposes of compliance this year, however, it may
not be necessary to resolve this issue because, due to the improvements in hydrology
that occurred in early April, the Board is not seeking to evaluate any operational
scenarios that may be inconsistent with Reclamation’s contractual obligations to
settlement or exchange contractors. Specifically, the Board’s April 29, 2020 letter asked
Reclamation to evaluate a scenario that stores water that is not delivered to settlement
and exchange contractors due to the Shasta Critical year determination. There is
reason to believe that this action may improve both temperature conditions in the fall
and carryover storage. If the Shasta Critical year determination changes, evaluation of
a scenario that reduces exports for service contractor deliveries is also requested.

|2

. e — e - —



-7-

These operations would be consistent with the settlement and exchange contracts,
which provide for 75 percent allocations in a Shasta Critical year. These operational
scenarios are also consistent with the shortage provisions contained in Central Valley
Project (CVP) service contracts, which generally provide for reduced annual deliveries
to service contractors when CVP water is unavailable due to hydrology or other legal
requirements, which would include obligations under Order WR 90-5. (See State Water
Resources Control Board Cases, supra, 136 Cal.App.4th at pp. 805-806 [discussing
shortage provision in CVP service contract].) The State Water Board recognizes that
such a scenario would have significant tradeoffs, however, and would therefore also like
information on those tradeoffs.

Drought and Carryover Storage

Storage conditions this year are very similar to conditions in 2013. That year was the
beginning of California’s most recent drought, when low storage at the end of water year
2013 contributed to reduced storage in 2014 and 2015. The low storage levels in 2014
and 2015 led to the loss of temperature control and near extinction of winter-run
Chinook salmon. Given the parallels this year to hydrologic conditions in 2013, the
State Water Board continues to be concerned with preventing temperature dependent
mortality and providing for carryover storage in the event that this is the first year in a
series of drought years. One of the significant lessons learned from the recent drought
was the need to plan for such contingencies. As such, Reclamation’s proposal to
operate this year similar to 2013 needs to be carefully considered. Recent information
from Reclamation provided on May 27 indicates that the volume of coldest water in
Shasta Reservoir (water less than 48 degrees F) is tracking very close to cold water
volumes observed in 2014, and that the volumes of water less than 49 degrees F is
more than 10 percent lower than what was modeled less than 2 weeks prior. The fact
that cold water pool estimates are already diverging from Reclamation’s model raises
concerns that temperature conditions could already be deteriorating relative to the May
20" TMP. Further, it is possible that this year's Shasta Critical year determination (in
which water supply allocations are reduced to various contractors) could change
resulting in changes in operations that could affect temperatures. Reclamation,
however, has not provided information regarding how such a change would affect
operations this year.

State Water Board Renewed Request for Information

As stated above, the State Water Board currently does not have sufficient information to
make a well-informed decision on Reclamation’s final TMP. If the following information
is provided within 20 days of the date of this letter, we will consider approval of the TMP

at that time:

o Evaluation of operational scenarios that improve temperature protection this
year, including extending temperature protection beyond October 31 if eggs are
still in the redds at that time, and carryover storage going into next year.
Assuming this remains a Shasta Critical year, this should include evaluation of

— s g .



SECTION (02 _ PAGE NO. |

-8-

improving temperature management and carryover storage with water not
allocated to settlement and exchange contractors and refuges under the
contractual shortage provisions of the associated contracts. In the event it is not
a Shasta Critical year following the recent storm event, a scenario in which
exports for service contractors are reduced to provide 100 thousand acre-feet
(TAF) of additional storage in Shasta Reservoir and up to 250 TAF if feasible
should be evaluated.

¢ An evaluation of other possible adjustments to other operations to improve
temperature conditions, including adjustments to power operations and Trinity
River imports.

¢ The State Water Board recognizes that at this point in the water year, such
scenarios could have significant water supply and economic impacts so also
requests an evaluation of the tradeoffs associated with the above scenarios.

In addition to providing this information, Reclamation should notify the State Water
Board immediately if any conditions (monitoring, modeling, operations, etc.) or
projections indicate that conditions will be any less protective than identified in the May
20" TMP. This includes, but is not limited to, lower than projected reservoir storage
levels or cold water pool volumes, higher than projected reservoir releases, higher than
projected water temperatures at CCR or Balls Ferry, increases to estimated winter-run
Chinook salmon mortality levels, or other indications that conditions for protection of
winter-run and other native species are degrading this year.

Transparency and Collaboration Moving Forward

The State Water Board wants to work cooperatively with Reclamation and watershed
stakeholders on collaborative science and planning to further improve our shared
understanding of temperature management actions that can best achieve water supply
and fish protection goals. Climate change, increased population growth, increased
water demand will continue to put additional stressors on an already overburdened
system, and could lead to endangered species going extinct when coupled with other
stressors on these fish. At the same time, the State Water Board recognizes that
curtailments in water supply and deliveries may cause real economic effects. Decisions
that deplete the cold water pool too early, or that require releases at the wrong time,
could have disastrous effects for water users and species alike. The State Water Board
is tasked with balancing competing demands, and relies on the best available science
and data when making related decisions and recommendations. The Board relies on
the expertise of our federal partners to help us make the best decisions. We cannot do
this alone.

While Reclamation evaluated over 300 management scenarios in developing the TMP
for this year, each scenario relied on the same basic set of assumptions related to
releases and supplies. The result was each scenario forecasted similar mortality levels



SECTION (0@_, PAGENO._[7 _

-9-

of salmon. The alternative operational scenarios the Board has requested are needed
to make the most informed temperature management decisions — not only for the
Board, but for the numerous stakeholders who are directly involved in management and
stewardship of California’s water resources. Most critically, voluntary efforts to develop
a long-lasting and meaningful balance between water supply and ecosystem needs will
ultimately rely on timely and accurate information. The information developed from the
requested scenario evaluations, combined with a better understanding of how water
supply changes propagate throughout the water supply system, is a necessary part of
an ongoing collaborative process.

One of the most difficult elements in temperature management planning is the short
decision-making window inherent to the current process. With a highly fluid hydrology,
changes in temperature and supply can occur on a near weekly basis, particularly
during the winter and spring. In 2018, State Water Board staff requested that
Reclamation develop a temperature management and planning protocol, in part to help
address the ongoing challenges associated with the short timelines of the existing
process. Reclamation worked towards this effort in 2018, but ultimately requested to
pause the development of the protocol as a new biological opinion was being
developed. A revised biological opinion was adopted in 2019.

Given that the 2019 biological opinion is now complete, Board staff requested in our
April 3, 2020 letter that Reclamation develop a draft protocol for submittal to the State
Water Board and fisheries agencies for comment by September 15, 2020. In public
comments on the TMP, the State Water Board received helpful recommendations from
Reclamation’s contractors, fisheries agencies, and non-governmental organizations
(NGOs) on possible improvements to the temperature management process that should
be considered related to early planning, voluntary measures, and collaboration. The
protocol should consider these recommendations, as the recommended improvements
could help all stakeholders involved. The State Water Board also recognizes that
Reclamation plans to develop a drought tool kit of actions that can be taken during
drought conditions to improve temperature management. The State Water Board is
very supportive of those efforts and encourages Reclamation to include information
regarding the drought tool kit in the draft protocol. Prior to development of the protocol,
State Water Board staff will be sending a letter outlining additional issues it believes are
important to consider, and we would like to meet with Reclamation to share ideas that
would meet our collective needs and objectives.

The draft protocol requested above will be a good first step in establishing an earlier
and ongoing collaborative process. Looking forward, efforts already underway may
provide additional opportunities for temperature management collaboration. A science
partnership with agencies, water users, and NGOs like that being proposed by the
Northern California Water Association, could be a promising opportunity for identifying
key temperature management questions and solutions in a collaborative forum. We
look forward to seeing additional information and outcomes from that process, and are
available for discussions as helpful.



SECTION 02 pacE No._l,(f__

-10-

If you have any questions regarding this letter, please contact Diane Riddle at
diane.riddle@waterboards.ca.gov. Please be aware that due to the public health
concerns regarding the COVID-19 virus and the resulting pandemic, many State Water
Board staff are telecommuting; therefore, the best avenue of communication at this time
is via email.

Sincerely,

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY

Eileen Sobeck
Executive Director
State Water Resources Control Board



SECTION (0D _ pacE no._[ 1

-11 -

Appendix: Clarifications and Corrections to Issues Raised in Reclamation’s May 11,
2020 Letter to the State Water Resources Control Board.

1. Prior Drought

Reclamation raises a number of comments in their May 11, 2020 letter to the State
Water Board regarding conditions during the prior drought and technical issues related
to temperature management that require clarification. The description provided in the
May 11t |etter offers an incomplete analysis of the complicated temperature
management issues that developed during the drought. We wish to provide additional
context to statements made in the May 11t |etter related to loss of temperature control
and modeling efforts.

Reclamation attributes the loss of temperature control during the drought years of 2014
and 2015 entirely to decisions by the regulatory agencies, including the State Water
Board. As Reclamation has acknowledged, depleted storage conditions in 2013
contributed to low storage in 2014 and associated temperature concerns. Regulatory
agencies relied on temperature modeling provided by Reclamation in 2014 as part of
the temperature planning process, and based regulatory decisions on that modeling
information. Unfortunately, as described in the Sacramento River Temperature Task
Group Annual Report and Activities, water temperatures from October 1, 2013 through
September 30, 2014 were about 4 degrees F higher than modeled. These high
temperature levels resulted in the loss of nearly all of the 2014 cohort of winter-run
Chinook salmon due to temperature dependent mortality.

In 2015, delayed reporting by Reclamation on limited cold water storage conditions left
limited options for improving temperature conditions, particularly without significant loss
of already dedicated economic resources, and little time to analyze what options
remained. By the time state and federal regulatory agencies were aware of the limited
cold water volumes there were few actions that could be taken.

Reclamation seems to attribute 2014-2015 winter-run Chinook salmon mortality to the
actions of regulatory actions, but clearly there are numerous factors that affected poor
outcomes in those years. A collaborative multi-agency and stakeholder approach will
help future temperature planning efforts — although without timely and accurate
information such collaborative efforts will be constrained. The experience of the 2014-
2015 drought years, and the resulting loss of nearly all the 2014 and 2015 cohorts of
winter-run Chinook salmon, have informed the Board’s subsequent temperature
management planning efforts. Likewise, Reclamation has also taken the lessons
learned during the most recent drought as an opportunity to evaluate drought responses
and improve its temperature planning and management processes. Continuing (and
potentially expanding) this working relationship will provide for better outcomes during
dry conditions in the future.



SECTION [Q_@_, PAGE NO. __};%__

-12-

2. Releases from Shasta, Allocations, and Decision Making

Reclamation’s May 11" comment letter states that there is little difference in March
through April releases from Shasta Reservoir between a zero allocation to water service
contractors and a 100 percent allocation to water service contractors in a dry year.
Reclamation further indicates that requirements for early water supply planning would
only impact planting decisions without benefiting the available cold water pool, since the
majority of deliveries to water service contractors begin in May when the hydrology and
stratification of the available cold water-pool is better known. The Board acknowledges
that changes in hydrology can be rapid and have significant effects on temperature
management planning, as evidenced by this'water year in particular. But the challenges
associated with hydrologic uncertainty make early planning efforts more critical, not
less. Reclamation may begin the majority of its deliveries to water service contractors in
May; however, water supply allocation and associated planting decisions related to
deliveries are made earlier in the season making it important to start planning processes
early when conditions are dry. Early discussions on hydrology could facilitate voluntary
efforts to identify reasonable options for improving cold water pool volumes and related
temperature induced mortality.

3. Temperature Relationship to Shasta Releases and Fall Carryover

Reclamation indicates that lower releases from Shasta Reservoir during the spring
through fall would not benefit temperature operations. Reclamation cites Daniels and
Danner (2020), who evaluated the relationship of river temperatures to discharge over a
wide range of flows and geographic scales. Daniels and Danner (2020) found that
“discharge temperature often had a larger effect compared to discharge volume,”
particularly in the upper reach of the Sacramento River near CCR where Reclamation
intends to manage temperatures. According to Daniels and Danner (2020), the river
temperature in the upper Sacramento River (between Keswick Dam and upstream of
Bend Bridge) responded primarily to changes in discharge temperature, with the
exception of flows below 5,300 cfs. (Reclamation’s forecasted releases during June and
July are about 12,000 cfs.) Thus, when releases are above 5,300 cfs, greater discharge
volumes may not be necessary to control river temperatures in the locations where
temperature management currently occurs, and higher releases may deplete stored
cold water resources.

Reclamation’s May 11 comment letter also indicates that there is not a significant
correlation between end of September storage levels and the next year’s cold-water
pool. Yet at the same time, Reclamation’s analysis of historical prior storage, inflow,
and releases for May 1 cold water capabilities states that “lower release in the fall of
2013 could have improved conditions for 2014.” As discussed above, this year is very
similar to 2013. Accordingly, improvements to carryover storage levels this year merit
further consideration to address the types of challenges encountered during 2014 and
2015.



s SECTION_LZ;Z_, PAGE NO. __)_ﬁ__-

4. Releases to Maintain Delta Water Quality

Reclamation indicates that State Water Board Decision 1641 (D-1641) required high
releases from Shasta storage this winter to meet Delta outflow requirements, despite
low precipitation. The D-1641 Delta outflow requirements are based on the prior
month’s hydrologic conditions to provide more operational certainty. The outflow
requirements include significant flexibility to reduce water supply impacts, including
three different methods of compliance and the ability to carry over excess compliance
days from one month to the next. Although daily outflow from Shasta Reservoir
exceeded inflow intermittently during the period from December through mid-March,
approximately twenty percent of inflow to the reservoir was stored on a net basis during
February and March. Although it is more typical to store upwards of fifty percent of
inflow during these months, outflow from Shasta is well within the range observed
during the prior twenty years of implementation of D-1641, on the basis of both absolute
volume and fraction of inflow to the reservoir.



SECTION_U@_;Z _ PAGE NO. 2

SF’s shuttered office buildings could face new health threat:
unsafe water

By San Francisco Chronicle, 5/27/20

Before San Francisco office workers start streaming back to downtown high-rises again,
property owners and managers need to make sure those buildings are safe. Not just
from the threat of coronavirus circulating among cubicles, but from medical problems
that can be caused when water in buildings sits stagnant for months. Plumbing systems
— the vast network of pipes that connect the city’s water system to cooling towers,
showers, sinks, toilets and urinals — require a consistent water flow in order for water to
stay safe. When there are no workers around to flush toilets or wash their hands, water
stagnates in pipes.

Flushing brings in disinfectant from the municipal systems that can help control
biological growth. Since 2004, the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission has
treated San Francisco’s water with choramine. The loss of that residual disinfectant can
allow the growth of mold or bacteria like the one that causes Legionnaires’ disease, a
serious type of pneumonia that can be fatal. In addition, the leaching of metals from the
pipes can cause health hazards ranging from delays in physical or mental development
in children to kidney problems or high blood pressure with adults.



CORRESPONDENCE



secTion_T: |_ pace No.

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 SEVENTH STREET, PO Box 95 * EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918

FAX 707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE @HBMWD.COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERI WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

DAVID LINDBERG, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

June 4, 2020

Caitlin Canale, General Manager

Ruth Lake Community Services District
PO Box 6

Mad River, CA 95552-0006

Re: California Special District Association (CSDA) training opportunities
Dear Caitlin,

As you are aware, our District has been assisting yours with obtaining California State Parks Division
of Boating and Waterways funds under their Quagga and Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention Grant
Program. As the owner of Ruth Lake, our district is required to be the applicant for these grants. Your
District incurs the actual expenses, which we in turn submit for grant reimbursement. The first three
applications were successful in obtaining $ 80,130 for your District.

16/16 Grant  $ 9,150 (operating expenses of $5,600)
16/17 Grant ~ $63,500 (operating expenses of $3,900)
17/18 Grant  $ 7,480 (operating expenses of $7,480)
19/20 Grant  $ 24,000 (operating expenses of $3,700) IN PROCESS, not yet approved

The operating expenses consist of: gate access key cards, boat to trailer bands, inspection stickers,
and telephone monthly charges. The total of $16,980 of operating costs is being reimbursed through
the grant program. Last month your district received the final grant reimbursement check from 17/18
grant for $4,807.85 (see enclosed copy). In this current grant cycle, phone charges are not allowed
and thus the reduced amount in operating costs.

I bring these figures to your attention with a suggestion for your consideration. You are a new General
Manager and your Board Secretary/Business Manager is relatively new to your District. Respectfully,
it occurs to me that you could both benefit from some of the trainings offered by the CSDA since your
District is a member of CSDA. The specific trainings that our District utilizes are the General Manager's
Summit and the Board Secretary Conference. | have attended the GM Summit and found it very
informative as well as a positive networking opportunity for peers in other special districts. Additionally,
we send our Board Secretary to the annual Board Secretary’s Conference nearly every year. She has
become well versed in the procedures and policies necessary for an effective and compliant
administrative operation of a Special District. | myself have attended this conference as well and found
it to beneficial as general manager. Unfortunately, due to COVID-19 this year's GM Summit was
cancelled. The Board Secretary conferences alternate locations between Southern California
(Anaheim) and Northern California (Monterey) The current year 2020 conferences are located on the
CSDA website: www.csda.net. The details will be available as the conference dates get closer.

l

o s o s s -



secion_ ) _paceNo._ 9~ _

e

I understand that budgets are typically tight, but given the operating costs savings that your District has
realized through the Quagga grants, an opportunity may exist to re-invest a portion of those RLCSD
savings/funds into you and your staff's education that will benefit the RLCSD for years to come.

I thought sharing this information might be useful for your organization.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. Or you can contact the CSDA or view
their website.

Respectfully, -/ '
7 /wz/z/féz&/

// John Friedenbach
'/ General Manager







CONTINUING BUSINESS



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SECTIONg_‘__L_, PAGE NO.__L_.._.

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach
Date: June 5, 2020
Subject: Water Resource Planning (WRP) — Status Report

The purpose of this memo is to summarize recent activities and introduce next steps for discussion.

1) Top-Tier Water Use Options

a) Local Sales
Nordic Aquafarms — See article attached.

ESS of Laguna Hills continues to prepare our grant application to the US Economic
Development Agency seeking funding for rehabilitating Station 6. We have received a draft
and are in the process of providing additional information to complete the application.

A report from Samoa Peninsula Stakeholder Group working group is expected by June 15th.
Staff will distribute to the Board when it is received.

b) Transport
No update.

c) Instream Flow Dedication
At the May Special Board meeting the draft project description was approved. The next
steps are to share the project description with the Water Task Force, Water Resource
Planning Advisory Committee, NMFS and CDFW prior to taking it to the Water Board staff.




f‘\) NORDIC

AQUAFARMS

[ - SUSTAINABLE AQUACULTURE

Press release — for immediate release (5/21/20)

Nordic Aquafarms Inc
Portland, Maine
Media contact: Marianne Naess / +1 207 323 6733

Nordic Aquafarms reaches a major milestone in Maine

The BEP (Board of the DEP) held deliberations on Nordic Aquafarms’ state permit applications
on Wednesday May 20™. Nordic Aquafarms is very pleased with the BEP deliberations. DEP
staff presented the different issues well, and Nordic commends the board for having valuable
discussions while finishing the session in just one day.

“It has been a long journey and | want to thank our employees, the DEP staff and our advisors
for their efforts in the permitting process” says Erik Heim, president of Nordic Aquafarms Inc.
“We also want to thank the BEP for its thorough processing of the applications based on facts
and science.

Nordic Aquafarms is satisfied with the permit conditions discussed during the deliberations.
Nordic is also pleased to announce that it has improved the discharge technology further since
submitting the MEPDES application in the fall of 2018 and is comfortable with the potential
permit conditions that will be proposed by the DEP. Nordic has developed the highest ocean
protection standards in the industry with higher nutrient removal and biosecurity measures
than any other farm in operation today.

The majority of the residents of Belfast, as well as all the elected officials, have supported the
project all along. Local supporters have formed support groups and gone to great lengths to
provide accurate information based on science and facts to the community. Nordic Aquafarms
wants to thank its supporters and the group “The Fish Are Okay” in particular for their support.



sEcTIONG (1) pace N0, __

A few local opponent groups have tried to derail the process with claims of the applications
being incomplete, by arguing the need for additional studies well beyond the required
regulations and by frivolous lawsuits claiming that Nordic doesn’t have a lawful access to the
bay for its intake and discharge pipes. Their attempts to derail the BEP process have been
unsuccessful.

The current situation with COVID-19 and disruptions in international supply chains shows the
importance of producing high quality food close to the consumers and underscores the
importance of this project both to Maine and the US, Heim says.

Nordic is now looking forward to the draft permits being issued and for other permits to come
to a conclusion in the near future.

Permits that were deliberated:

MEPDES - discharge permit

SLODA - site law permit

NRPA — natural resources permit

Air Emissions - minor air emissions permit




TIMES-STANDARD -  Wednesday, May 27, 2020 SECTION ng 0,\ PAGE NO. 3

Harbor district to review Nordic’s plan to

relocate tenants
Cost estimates range up to $147,000

-
T ———
b P -

A visualization of Nordic Aquafarms’ finished aquaculture facility at the Samoa
Peninsula. (Nordic Aquafarms contributed)

By SHOMIK MUKHER]EE | smukheriee@times-standard.com | Times-Standard
May 26, 2020 at 3:15 p.m.

Humboldt Bay commissioners on Thursday will look to approve a relocation plan for
several businesses that will likely be displaced from their leased Samoa Peninsula
properties by an expansion of Nordic Aquafarms’ forthcoming $400 million
aquaculture facility.

The company has agreed to cover the bulk of relocation costs for the tenants. State
law would require that the Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation and Conservation
District find a way to pick up the tab, but the district's executive director said Tuesday
that Nordic will do the heavy lifting on the costs.

The total costs of relocation are estimated to range between $36,000 and $147,000,
depending on where, and how quickly, the tenants are able to find new spaces. The
high-end estimates are the sum of fixed payments mandated by California relocation
laws.

There are several businesses that will need to find new places, including locally-
owned Restif Cleaning Services. The harbor district will pay for two of the tenants —
Coastal Business Systems and CPR, Inc. owner Suk-Choo Kim — to relocate, while
Nordic will cover the rest.

“Those two tenants are month-to-month in their lease,” Larry Oetker, the harbor
district’s executive director, said Tuesday. “They use the property for storage. Spaces
to rent are fairly readily available for those uses.”



TIMES-STANDARD -  Wednesday, May 27, 2020

Some of the businesses might end up finding space in other properties on the
peninsula, Oetker added, but others will need to look elsewhere. The district’s
relocation plan outlines a list of possible local properties that could lease space,
including in Eureka, Arcata and Fortuna.

“We’re not too concerned about it,” Coastal Business Systems principal Mike
Dominick said Tuesday. “Since we’re a service that helps businesses, we're pretty
positive about the aquafarm, or whatever it is, coming in to provide jobs around the
bay.”

None of the businesses being displaced are coastal-dependent, which means they
don't rely on being close to the ocean to operate. Until the harbor district got on the
right side of the law in late 2018, the businesses were there illegally.

But, as part of their newfound compliance, the leases included a clause that future
coastal-dependent businesses could take their spot.

Nordic Aquafarms commercial director Marianne Naess said Tuesday the company is
happy to pay the costs.

“It's something we’ve been aware of and was always part of our consideration,” Naess
said. “And it’s fair, and that's what California mandates. Of course we’'ll follow the laws
and regulations.”

The harbor district is set to review the plan at a meeting on Thursday.

Shomik Mukherjee can be reached at 707-441-0504.



SECTIONg | &3 pace no._|

e e s i

June 4, 2020

John Friedenbach, General Manager
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
PO Box 95

Eureka, CA 95502-0095

Dear John:

1

On behalf of the Cher-Ae Heights Indian Community of the Trinidad Rancheria, please accept this
letter as our formal request to enter into Government to Government Consultation with the
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD). As per earlier conversations, the Tribe would
like to work with HBMWD to develop the infrastructure to receive water at the Trinidad Rancheria
Main Trust Parcel. We are interested in direct service from HBMWD to the Rancheria.

I have attached some historical documents from 2015 when the Rancheria began discussion with
HBMWD. Carol Rische, General Manager at that time sent us a letter dated May 12, 2015,
(attached), regarding the possibility of a broader effort to address connecting outlying communities
to the regional water system. A Reconnaissance Level Assessment for Water Distribution Pipeline
North to the Trinidad Area was completed by GHD for HBWMD. Subsequently, the City of
Trinidad decided not to pursue the water infrastructure project at that time and the planning effort
came to a standstill.

Trinidad Rancheria embarked upon a master planning effort in 2009 — 2011. We were successful
in creating a “Comprehensive Community-Based Plan.” This plan includes Goals and Policies for
Land Use, Transportation, Housing, Economic Development, Cultural Resources, including
Marine Planning, and the Trinidad Harbor Development.'

The Tribe must have the ability to develop its lands and resources for the overall well-being of the
Trinidad Rancheria Tribal Membership. Water is an integral and basic necessity for all peoples
and in order to reach our goals and objectives we must find alternative water sources.

! Comprehensive Community Based-Plan, December 2011, Prepared by Local Government Commission, Michael
Sweeney, AICP, Opticos Design, Inc., Sherwood Engineers



SECTIONG:| &9 PAGE NO. O~

o o o ] O

Please present this request to your Board of Directors at their upcoming Board meeting on June
11, 2020. 'We are happy to meet via a zoom meeting or conference call to discuss next steps.
Please contact our Chief Executive Officer, Jacque Hostler-Carmesin at (707) 677-0211 or
jhostler(@trinidadrancheria.com , to confirm a meeting with the Tribal Council.

Respectfully,

Daa Yo dos,

Garth Sundberg
Tribal Chairman
Trinidad Rancheria



SECTIONG:| 0, dpacE NO. 2>
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO BOox 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918
FAX 707-443-5731 707-822-8245

EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM

,r[,,,d
9 Ray,
BOARD OF DIRECTORS Peceiygy 04,‘;1% '
BARBARA HECATHORN, PRESIDENT "
ALDARON LAIRD, VICE-PRESIDENT My y
J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER 7
KAITLIN SOPOCIBELKNAP, DIRECTOR 2 o
SHERI WOO, DIRECTOR " ) !
& :
GENERAL MANAGER "”””"’frg:%a”
CAROL RISCHE
eceﬂtiao
May 7, 2015
Jacque Hostler-Carmesin Dan Berman
Chief Executive Officer City Manager
Trinidad Rancheria City of Trinidad
PO Box 630 PO Box 390
Trinidad, CA 95570 Trinidad, CA 95570

RE: Reconnaissance Level Assessment- Water Distribution Pipeline North to Trinidad

Dear Ms. Hostler-Carmesin and Mr. Berman,

We appreciate your potential interest in exploring the feasibility of Trinidad Rancheria, the City, and
possibly neighboring communities connecting to Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District’s regional
water system. Following our discussion earlier this year, we requested a proposal from GHD for a
reconnaissance-level study exploring routes, design considerations and developing a preliminary cost
estimate.

Attached for your review and consideration is their proposal. In addition to the reconnaissance-level
pipeline study, an optional activity is included which would provide additional detail to support the

design.

We understand that costs are a consideration, and that you may not have the means to fund a study such
as this.

There is a possibility of a broader effort to address how outlying communities can connect to the regional
water system. Last year, we received a similar inquiry from parties south of our District and prepared a
proposal to explore routes and costs to serve them. We discussed the possible interest of outlying
communities connecting to the regional system with Tony Weidemann, CA Division of Drinking Water.
He informed us that a possible funding mechanism is the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
program. We checked and they offer planning grants which may fund reconnaissance studies such as
these, especially given the drought.



secTIoNB.| 0-Face No.

We are available to answer any questions, and would be happy to bring all parties together to discuss the
level of interest and next steps to try to secure funding.
Sincerely,

Re

Carol Rische
General Manager

Enclosure:
Scope and Budget for Reconnaissance Level Assessment - Water Distribution Pipeline North to Trinidad

area

cc: David Hull, General Manager, Humboldt CSD
Greg Orsini, General Manager, McKinleyville CSD
Kyle Knopp, City Manager, Rio Dell
Merritt Perry, Engineer, Fortuna
Pat Kaspari, District Engineer, GHD
Tony Weidemann, CA Division of Drinking Water



secTIoNG | 4mceno,_ 5

Ref: 8411312

April 23, 2015

Ms. Carol Rische

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
828 Seventh Street

Eureka, CA 95501

Re: Scope and Budget for Reconnaissance Level Assessment
Water Distribution Pipeline North to the Trinidad area

Dear Carol,

The following is a scope and cost estimate to provide a reconnaissance-level assessment as part of the
Water Resource Planning effort for feasible pipeline routes to transfer HBMWD water north to Westhaven,
City of Trinidad and Trinidad Rancheria area. In general, the scope will consist of updating the alternative
pipeline alignments presented in previous studies, and updating the cost estimated for construction to
current dollars. An additional alignment utilizing Green Diamond lands will also be assessed. The scopes
for this task as well as additional alternative tasks are detailed below:

Task 1 — Reconnaissance Level Pipeline Study
This task will include a review of the previous studies of potential pipeline routes from HBMWD to the
Trinidad area. Studies to be reviewed include:
1. HBMWD, Report Concerning McKinleyville-Trinidad Area Water Service, HBMWD, April 21, 1967
2. City of Trinidad, Water Supply Feasibility Study, Technical Memorandum No. 9, HBMWD
Technical Feasibility, Winzler & Kelly, November 2001
3. City of Trinidad, Water Supply Feasibility Study, Technical Memorandum No. 12, Cost
Comparison, Winzler & Kelly, April 2002
4. City of Trinidad, Preliminary Engineering Report, Winzler & Kelly, June 2008

All of these reports assess a 12-inch diameter pipeline from the McKinleyville CSD water system near
Dows Prairie running to the north on one of three potential routes including:
1. North from the MCSD system at Dows Prairie along County roads to Little River, west under Hwy
101 at the Little River Bridge, then North along Scenic Drive and Westhaven Drive to the City of
Trinidad’s water treatment plant.
2. Route 2 would begin the same as Route 1, but stay on the east side of Hwy 101 at Little River to
Westhaven Drive, and follow Westhaven Drive to the Treatment Plant. -
3. Route 3 follows County roads. It begins the same as the previous routes at Dows Prairie, but
heads east on Crannell Road to Hammond Truck Road where it would cross Little River on the
existing bridge and continue to work north and west to Westhaven Drive and the treatment plant.

Recent discussions with Green Diamond Company suggest that they may be willing to allow use of their
lands and roads for a pipe installation and a route through their lands will also be evaluated. .

Each of these alignments will be assessed for feasibility, including a desk top analysis and consideration

of the following factors:
¢ Assessment of pipeline and booster pumps stations sized to convey appropriate quantities of

water
¢ Constriction points of the existing HBMWD/MCSD systems that would limit water delivery and

potential remedies to any identified constrictions
GHD Inc.

718 Third Street Eureka CA 95501 USA
T 1707 443 8326 F 1 707 444 8330 E eureka@ghd.com W www.ghd.com




secTioN:| Wdpageno, 0

B —

&

Ms. Carol Rische

April 23, 2015
Page 2
¢ Topographic relief
e Public or utility right-of-way availability
e Constructability impacts
* Environmental impacts (qualitative assessment only, e.g. this alignment crosses 20 salmonid
bearing streams, each of which will require a Dept. of Fish & Wildlife 1600 permit, etc.)
o Potential general impacts to cities, roads, railways, other major utilities
o  Construction cost

e Operation and maintenance costs

The previous cost estimates developed in 2002 and 2008 will be reviewed and adjusted to 2015 dollars
and a Class 4 Opinion of Probable Construction Cost estimate meeting the requirements of the
Association for the Advancement of Cost Engineering (AACE) International will be developed for each of
the transmission routes identified. Along with the construction cost, costs for engineering design,
permitting construction monitoring, environmental monitoring, and environmental mitigation will also be
prepared for each alternative. All costs will be prepared in 2015 dollars and escalation factors used to

project costs out for the next 10 years.

A Draft Reconnaissance Study will then be prepared detailing the alternative alignments and feasibility as
well as the anticipated Opinion of Probable Construction Costs and engineering and permitting costs.
The Draft Reconnaissance Study will be presented to District Staff as well as Water Resource Committee
members for review. Comments on the Draft Study will be incorporated, and a Final Reconnaissance
Study will be prepared and submitted to the District.

Deliverables:
¢ Five (5) hardcopies Draft Reconnaissance Study
» Eight (8) hardcopies and one (1) electronic copy in .pdf format of Final Reconnaissance Study.

rofessional Service Fee ,
GHD will provide the above described scope of services on a Time and Material Basis at our Standard

Labor Rates in place at the time of execution of the work. The estimated cost for this scope of work is:
Task 1-Reconnaissance Level Pipeline Study $15,000

Potential Additional Tasks
The intent of Task 1 is to provide a very high level Reconnaissance Study to assess feasible route(s) and

options for providing water to the Trinidad area and provide an order of magnitude construction cost for
such. There are a number of additional Tasks that could also be performed to further refine this study
and provide more accurate assessments of the feasible route and/or construction and permitting costs.
These alternative tasks are detailed below.

Alternative Task A - Needs Assessment

This Task would consist of a needs assessment for the communities of Westhaven and Trinidad, as well
as the other communities along the route including the Trinidad Rancheria, and areas north and east of
Trinidad/Westhaven. GHD will contact representatives of each of these communities and discuss the
project and review their current and projected potable water needs. GHD will also obtain and review
copies of any recently completed water demand and/or rate studies. GHD will also review the Water
Resource section of the Humboldt County General Plan update and include their projections for potable
water demand and water infrastructure updates recommended for these communities. This information




SECTIONG:| &9 bace No,_

&

Ms. Carol Rische
April 23, 2015
Page 3

will be summarized in a Technical Memorandum and reviewed with HBMWD Staff. GHD will then work
with HBMWD staff to finalize which communities to include in the overall study and will utilize the
projected flows for these communities to size the pipeline analyzed in Task 1. Additional lateral lines to
these communities can also be included in the construction cost estimate for Task 1, but the extent of
these service laterals is unknown at this time and is not included in the cost below.

Deliverables:
¢ Electronic version of Needs Assessment Technical Memo
* Flow studies and pipeline sizing to be included in the Final Reconnaissance Study.

Fee
Alt Task A-Need Assessment $10,000

General Assumptions/Exclusions
This proposal is based on the following assumptions:

1. Field work, including, but not exclusive to geotechnical, survey, or right-of-way acquisition work, is

not included in this scope.

2. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) studies or permitting are not included.

3. Scope includes only review of Public Right-of-Way alignments and discussions with Green
Diamond Company and does not include other discussions with private individuals or businesses

for use of their land for right-of-way.
4. Does not include any public meetings or discussions with other parties other than those identified

in the scope.

Schedule
GHD proposes to complete the Draft Reconnaissance Study within eight (8) weeks of the receipt of a

signed contract. The Final Reconnaissance Study will be completed within two (2) weeks of receipt of
comments on the Draft Final Study.

As always, we appreciate the opportunity to assist you on this project. Please do not hesitate to call me if
you have any questions.

Sincerely,

2t

Patrick Kaspari, P.E.
District Engineer




sECTIoN;| 0-Ipack No. e

Tug-of-water: Trinidad Rancheria says city not
acting in good faith

Boutique hotel could come to Trinidad's Main Street

With its latest
design, the
Trinidad
Rancheria’s hotel
project is intended
to be more

_ compatible with
the surrounding
bay. (Contributed)

SHOMIK MUKHERJEE | smukherjee@times-standard.com |
PUBLISHED: May 18, 2020 at 3:11 p.m. | UPDATED: May 18, 2020 at 3:11 p.m.

The controversial hotel project in Trinidad brinks on the city’s agreement to supply the
five-story, 100-room development with water, an amount the tribe says is more than
adequate but believes the city is refusing to part with.

In a letter dated May 13, tribal Chairman Garth Sundberg accuses the city of not
demonstrating good faith in discussions over its ability to provide water for the hotel.
The city has considered supporting the development of a separate hotel to be built on
Trinidad’s Main Street, which a tribal executive said would be a source of competition
for the city’s water supply.

If the city doesn’t play ball, tribal officials will refuse to help the city to complete a
stormwater management project on tribal property.

“Surprisingly, rather than working as a partner with the Trinidad Rancheria, the City
appears prepared to use its control of the water system, which draws water from
outside of the city, to deny the Trinidad Rancheria the most basic and necessary
resources,” the letter states.

On Monday, tribe CEO Jacque Hostler-Carmesin said the tribe is trying to foster
positive dialogue with city officials, even giving a presentation recently that outlined
the rancheria’s history of offering help to the city on various projects.

In recent months, however, the Trinidad City Council has drafted a water policy that
projects a limited water supply, especially in climate change-influenced dry years,



sEcTioN %:| 0%pnce N0, A

available to the city’s residents alone. The rancheria is looking to use 10,000 gallons a
day for its hotel.

“We’re willing to work with the city in the good years and the lean years,” Hostler-
Carmesin said. “So far, the rancheria has contributed over $850,000 to the city’s water
infrastructure, and we are very willing to look at the new projects outlined in
(engineering) studies and request funding for those projects as well.”

Now the tribe is threatening to refuse the city “any right to use its land” to rest a
stormwater vault, part of a city-led infrastructure project. The council during a special
meeting this week will discuss a new memorandum of understanding, or an informal
agreement with the tribe to begin new discussions about the city’s ability to provide
water for the hotel.

Trinidad
Rancheria CEO
Jacque Hostler-
Carmesin argued
for 100-room
hotel project’s
future at the
California Coastal
Commission
meeting in
August. (Shomik
Mukherjee — The
Times-Standard
file)

Meanwhile, Hostler-Carmesin said the tribe was “surprised” to learn that city manager
Eli Naffah is working to support other parties’ development of a separate hotel project
in Trinidad proper.

But Naffah said Monday the project in question is to build a “boutique hotel, small and
classy.” Along with a few other shops, Naffah said the Trinidad Coastal Land Trust-led
project would occupy a 5-acre parcel in the city’s Main Street area.

“It's just an idea,” Naffah said, “a way to create tax dollars because we're losing
revenue.”

Hostler-Carmesin said earlier this year that the hotel could be finished as early as
summer 2020, but the ongoing coronavirus pandemic will delay that target date by at
least several months. Despite economic hold-ups and stalled talks with the city, the
executive said she remains optimistic about the hotel’s construction.

Shomik Mukherjee can be reached at 707-441-0504.



|0

secTion®. g >pace N0, Y

CITIZENS GROUP DECRIES CLOSED MEETINGS ON
PROPOSED HYATT HOTEL

May 18, 2020 Kym Kemp Leave a comment

Trinidad [Photo from the HARP Facebook page]

Press release from HARP (Humboldt Alliance for Responsible Planning):

The City of Trinidad has called a special City Council meeting-by-videoconference for
Thursday, May 21, at 6 p.m., to consider a “memorandum of understanding” to conduct behind-
closed-doors negotiations over demands to supply water to a controversial high-rise Hyatt hotel
project on Trinidad Bay.

The special meeting is in response to a threat by Garth Sundberg, chairman of the Trinidad
Rancheria, that would derail a long-planned environmental cleanup project for Trinidad Bay
unless the City of Trinidad agrees to supply city water to the hotel project.

The special City Council meeting is open to the public via video or telephone. Go

to https://trinidad.ca.gov/calendar and click on May 21 for connection details and the meeting

packet. Sundberg’s May 13 letter to the Council is at https://www.humboldtalliance.org/trinidad-
water#.

Trinidad residents and others are urged to send comments to cityclerk(« trinidad.ca.gov, and
attend Thursday’s City Council teleconference.

In his letter, Sundberg says the Rancheria will withdraw cooperation with the city in a long-
planned Trinidad Bay stormwater control project “until and unless the City provides a final and

mutually-acceptable decision™ to provide city water to the hotel. The stormwater project was



sEcTIoN.| 6 J-pace No._||___

scheduled to go to the California Coastal Commission for a permit sometime later in 2020 — in
conjunction with a separate Stormwater Project for the Rancheria-owned Trinidad Pier. But this
late threat throws both stormwater cleanup projects into question.

The Trinidad-based citizens group Humboldt Alliance for Responsible Planning (HARP) objects
to the behind-closed-doors negotiating process demanded by the Rancheria, and to the threat of
damaging the health of Trinidad Bay as a pressure tactic against the city.

“The City should not give-in to this kind of tactic,” said HARP attorney Bryce Kenny, a former
Trinidad mayor. “This discussion needs to take place in full view of the public.”

“The Rancheria is demanding a cart-before-the-horse approach,” he said. “The City Council
already has a good process under way to finalize a comprehensive water policy. Before
negotiating over providing water for a high-rise Hyatt, the city needs to complete its due
diligence, and to consider the needs of its residents.”

The City of Trinidad has been conducting water studies throughout 2019 of the city’s
Luffenholtz Creek water supply and water processing plant. In April, the city Planning
Commission delivered a draft water policy to the City Council, prioritizing water service to
Trinidad residents inside city limits, and then to nearby properties.

At that April 14 meeting, the city planner warned that “drought or climate change or other
upstream water rights” could reduce the city’s water supply. Scientists have already concluded
that California is in the midst of a 400-year “mega-drought,” and 2020 is already much drier than
normal.

The City Council has asked the Planning Commission to draft a drought contingency plan as part
of its new water policy, and that is on the commission’s agenda for Tuesday, May 19

(see htips:/trinidad.ca.gov/calendar for details).

About HARP: HARP is an informal grassroots group dedicated to informing citizens about
major development projects in their communities that could affect their lives and environment.

Visit https://www.humboldtalliance.ore.




SECTIONT:| (1 - PAGE NO.

Water glitch not stopping Trinidad Rancheria hotel

|

e s o e

05/31/2020

3 The planned Hyatt Hotel on Trinidad Bay.

Jack Durham
Mad River Union

TRINIDAD - The Trinidad Rancheria is forging ahead its with plans to build a five-story, 100-
room hotel near its casino, despite the City of Trinidad’s reluctance to provide additional water
for the facility.

“The hotel project is alive and well and it's moving forward,” Trinidad Rancheria Chief Executive
Officer Jacque Hostler-Carmesin told the Trinidad City Council at a May 21 special meeting.

The council convened in a remote Webex meeting with more than 67 attendees to consider an
eight-point memorandum of understanding between the city and the tribe. The MOU would have
allowed in-depth discussions between the two entities regarding the water issue.

The MOU, however, was shot down by a divided council, which voted 3-2 against entering into
the agreement. That leaves the issue in limbo, although some council members said they
wanted to continue talking with the tribal leaders.

Water request

The rancheria, a sovereign nation outside the city limits, is requesting an additional 9,500
gallons per day of water to serve the hotel. The city already provides water for the casino, tribal
offices and homes on the rancheria.

City residents and council members have expressed concerns that the city may not have an
adequate supply of water, specially during the end of summer and during drought years.



1Z_

secTIoNG.| 4% pacE No.

Last year, the city commissioned a water study, which was completed by GHD, an engineering
company. That reported concluded that the city’s water system has a theoretical surplus of
about 48,000 gallons a day.

The report, however, was focused on the plant’s ability to treat water, and did not look at
droughts.

The city council has also tasked the Trinidad Planning Commission with coming up with a policy
on how to handle new water requests.

Officials with the rancheria have expressed frustration with the city and its failure to provide

water for the project.

On May 13, Tribal Chair Garth Sundberg sent a letter to Trinidad Mayor Steve Ladwig accusing
the city of not negotiating in good faith. Sundberg said that as result of this, the rancheria would
not allow the city to access tribal lands for a stormwater project.

‘Have a dialogue’
That sparked the city to create a draft MOU, which was presented to the council May 20.

“The intent here is to have a dialogue, to have a conversation,” said Trinidad City Manager Eli
Naffah, as he explaining the purpose of the MOU at the meeting.

Trinidad Councilmember Tom Davies repeatedly questioned Naffah about the MOU and
whether it was created through meetings between the tribe and the city officials.

Tribal member Shirley Laos said that the tribe was never consulted about the creation of the
MOU and learned about its contents in a newspaper.

“The illusion being casts that there are backroom deals going on is false,” Hostler-Carmesin

said.

Had the MOU been approved, two councilmembers and the city manager would have met with
tribal leaders. Some of their discussions would be confidential, such as hotel business details.

Trinidad resident Bryce Kenny raised concerns about these meetings.

“‘Avoid the government-to-government meetings as much as possible,” said Kenny, who noted
that such meetings add to the perception that private deals are being made.

Kenny argued that the city should wait to make decision until the Planning Commission is done
making a policy on new water requests.

“You and the rancheria need to be patient while they finish their work,” Kenny said.



Fifth District Supervisor Steve Madrone said he didn’t think the MOU was needed because the
city doesn’t have enough water.

“There’s no water to offer,” Madrone said. He suggested that the city look into getting grants,
expand its water storage capacity and explore rainwater collection.

Councilmember Dwight Miller said he agreed with Madrone that there was an insufficient water
supply and that more storage was needed to capture water during the rainy season.

Councilmember Jack West said he had received an “unbelievable” number of letters from
community members opposed to the MOU.

“I feel like I'm going against the community to vote for this,” West said.
‘Path of no return’

Davies made a motion to stop the MOU, stating “Considering the Planning Commission has
been directed to finish the Water Policy draft, complete with a Drought Contingency Plan, |
move to deny the request to develop an MOU with the Trinidad Rancheria at this time.

“Furthermore, if the in the future the topic of this MOU reappears, all negotiations regarding
said MOU will take place in an open public meeting.”

Hostler-Carmesin warned the council that this was the wrong thing to do.
“It's going down a path of no return,” she said. “That’s not positive.”

Voting in favor of the motion were Ladwig, Davies and Dave Grover. Opposing the motion were
Miller and West.

After the vote, Sherri Provolt of the Yurok Tribe urged the council to make a motion to have city
representatives meet with the rancheria to continue discussions. “Keeping the relationship is
vital,” she said.

No motion was made, although councilmembers said they may discuss it at a future meeting.
Another hotel?

Adding to the controversy over supplying water to the tribe for its hotel was a rumor that city
officials were considering another hotel within the city limits.

In his May 13 letter, Tribal Chair Garth Sundberg wrote, “Further contradicting the City’s
purported concerns about water system capacity, the Trinidad Rancheria has recently learned
that the City Manager is working with other parties to develop a hotel and shopping center
project on the last remaining vacant land within the city limits.”



secTion Gl deace no, | S
One of the vacant parcels is a former horse pasture located near the Trinidad Cemetery and
owned by the Trinidad Coastal Land Trust (TCLT).

According to the TCLT Executive Director Ben Morehead, “While City Manager Eli Naffah did
present a concept for a boutique hotel to the TCLT board, there are no plans to pursue this idea.
TCLT has not even discussed this.

“His hotel idea is just one of the many ideas we have received via informal community input
offering recommendations for future use of this pasture property including: a skatepark, public
park, public restroom, amphitheater, visitor info center, community garden, community swim
pool, keep it as is open space and create a new botanical garden.

“In addition, the TCLT board received a video presentation about a “green cemetery” (eco-
friendly/no casket natural burial) during a board retreat meeting.

“TCLT will not make any decisions about the future uses of the pasture property this year 2020,
and likely not next year either,” Morehead stated.



SECTION G~ pacE NO._\

News Flash

Sheriff's Office

Posted on: May 28, 2020
Nine water diversion violations found during MET search warrants

. . On May 27, 2020, deputies with the Humboldt
County Sheriff’s Office Marijuana Enforcement Team
(MET) served three search warrants to investigate
illegal cannabis cultivation in the Dinsmore area.

i The California Department of Fish and Wildlife and
Humboldt County Code Enforcement assisted in the
service of the warrant.

Three parcels were investigated during the service
of the warrant. The parcels did not possess the
required county permit and state license to cultivate
» cannabis commercially.

' During the service of the warrants, deputies

| eradicated approximately 9,910 growing cannabis

. plants. Deputies seized and destroyed
approximately 7,120 pounds of processed cannabis.

Assisting agencies found the following violations:

Nine water diversion violations (up to $8,000 fine per day, per violation)
Commercial cannabis ordinance violations (up to $10,000 fine per day)
Additional violations with civil fines are expected to be filed by the assisting agencies.

No arrests were made during the service of the warrant. The case will be forwarded to the
DA’s Office for review.

Anyone with information about this case or related criminal activity is encouraged to call
the Humboldt County Sheriff’s Office at (707) 445-7251 or the Sheriff’s Office Crime Tip
line at (707) 268-2539.



SECTION 83 _pacE No.__|

T'L.G Thomas Law Group

TINA A. THOMAS 455 CAPITOL MALL, SUITE 801 | ONE KAISER PLAZA, SUITE 875 NICHOLAS S. AVDIS
SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 OAKLAND, CA 94612 ERIC E. REYNOLDS
AMY R. HIGUERA Of Counsel
CHRISTOPHER J. BUTCHER Telephone: (916) 287-9292 Facsimile: (916) 737-5858
Senior Counsel www.thomaslaw.com

ANNE L. BAPTISTE
JOHANNAH E. KRAMER

May 18, 2020

Humboldt County Board of Supervisors
825 5th Street, Room 111
Eureka, CA 95501

RE: Formal Withdrawal of Appeal of Planning Commission Approval of Applications
13319/SP16-868, 13328/SP16-870, 13339/SP16-871, and 13346/SP16-872 submitted by
Michael Brosgart and Arielle Brosgart; APN 516-111-064

To the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors:

On September 19, 2019, the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (the District) appealed the
September 5, 2019 Planning Commission decision to approve applications 13319/SP16-868,
13328/SP16-870, 13339/SP16-871, and 13346/SP16-872 (collectively, “the Project”) submitted by
Michael Brosgart and Arielle Brosgart (Applicants) for APN 516-111-064. This appeal was based on
evidence that the Project may result in significant environmental impacts that were neither analyzed
nor mitigated in the mitigated negative declaration (MND) prepared for the Project. Specifically, the
District was concerned that the Project may exacerbate contaminated conditions at the Project site by
causing PCP and/or dioxins to migrate off the Project site into Hall Creek and/or the Mad River,
potentially resulting in significant environmental and human health impacts since the Mad River
provides drinking water to 88,000 Humboldt residents. Because the MND failed to analyze these
potentially significant impacts, the District requested that the Applicants undertake soil and
groundwater sampling at the Project site to evaluate the risk posed by the Project to the District’s
drinking water supplies and whether an environmental impact report needed to be prepared.

The Applicants addressed the District’s concerns and undertook the requested soil and groundwater
sampling. The District expresses its appreciation to the Applicants for their cooperation in addressing
the District’s concerns. The soil and groundwater sampling met rigorous testing protocols to ensure
that the lab results accurately reflect contamination levels at the Project site. The District notes there
were some concerns with the laboratory calculations and reporting, and it remains particularly
concerned by the anomalous presence of dioxins in groundwater. However, the results demonstrated
that PCP and dioxin contamination levels are low at the Project site. Based on expert advice and
recognizing that the contamination levels at the Project site are low, the District finds that the Project
poses a low risk to its drinking water supplies. Therefore, the District formally withdraws its appeal.

The District’s decision to withdraw its appeal is a data-driven decision and is limited to the Project
site and the facts as currently known. By withdrawing its appeal, the District does not waive any right
to continue to maintain the public’s interest and safeguard its public drinking water supply. The



SECTION B2 _ PAGENO._Z__

o gy o e g )

Board of Supervisors
TILIG Thomas Law Group Maypl 8. 2020

Page 2 of 2

District reserves all rights to investigate, comment on, and challenge future development projects,
including, but not limited to, development of the surrounding properties, that potentially pose a threat
to the District’s drinking water supplies for 2/3rds of the County’s population. It further reserves all
rights to make demands and pursue legal actions related to the need for more extensive investigations
and remediation of contamination related to the McNamara & Peepe site specifically. The District
appreciates the County’s collaboration in addressing the need for ongoing investigation and
monitoring of contaminated conditions arising from the McNamara & Peepe site. The District looks
forward to reviewing DTSC’s plans to investigate, monitor, and aggressively remediate the source/s
of the contamination at the McNamara & Peepe site to ensure those plans address its 2018 finding
that that soil and groundwater contamination is not under control and the previously implemented
remedial actions are no longer protective of human health and the environment.

Respectfully,
-

e S

Anne Baptiste

cc: Michael and Arielle Brosgart
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
California Department of Toxic Substances Control
California Department of Fish and Wildlife
North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board
Humboldt Baykeeper



June 3, 2020
Ms. Nicole Yuen
Department of Toxic Substances Control
700 Heinz Avenue
Berkeley, CA 94710

RE: McNamara & Peepe Lumber Mill (12240115) - Soil and Groundwater Monitoring
Results and Recommendations

Ms. Yuen,

On behalf of Humboldt Baykeeper’s board, staff, and members, | submit these
comments on the December 20, 2019 McNamara & Peepe Lumber Mill Soil and
Groundwater Monitoring Report, which summarized the August 2019 sampling event
conducted at the former McNamara & Peepe Lumber Mill (Site) near Glendale Drive in
Arcata, California.

Humboldt Baykeeper works to safeguard our coastal resources for the heaith,
enjoyment, and economic strength of the Humboldt Bay community, and is a member
of the California Coastkeeper Alliance and the international Waterkeeper Alliance.

We understand that DTSC is currently evaluating options to remediate the green chain
area at the Site. DTSC is also planning to conduct additional groundwater monitoring at
the site and is in the process of getting contracts in place.! As DTSC prepares to direct
future sampling, we are writing with concerns and recommendations to guide further
assessment and remediation efforts.

Mailing Address: 600 F Street, Suite 3 #810 P =
Office: 415 | Street, Arcata, CA 95521 4N »
(707) 499-3678 WATERKEEPER’ ALLIANCE

www.humboldtbaykeeper.org MEMBER

1 April 6, 2020 letter from DTSC to Thomas Law Group, p. 5.
https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/deliverable documents/2461409628/Response%20t0%20TLG

%203.6.2020%20Letter.pdf

\



SECTION g'q PAGE NO. __a:._

s o e )

The contamination at the Site is of great interest to our members, which include
residents of the Glendale community and the greater Mad River/Humboldt Bay area.
Our concerns include potential unidentified impacts to municipal drinking water as well
as aquatic species and habitats of the Mad River and Hall Creek, which are receiving
waters for surface water and groundwater originating on the Site.

On March 9, 1998, DTSC issued a Remedial Action Certification on for McNamara and
Peepe Lumber Mill (Site) upon implementation of the remedial actions pursuant to the
December 4, 1994 Remedial Action Plan. However, subsequent soil and groundwater
investigations have revealed that soil and groundwater contamination at the Site is not
under control and the implemented remedial actions are no longer protective of human
health and the environment. On December 28, 2018, DTSC rescinded the March 9, 1998
Remedial Action Certification and issued a Decertification based on the findings outlined
in DTSC’s December 28, 2018 letter to the property owner.?

I. The full extent of the dioxin contaminant plume needs to be clearly defined.

The December 20, 2019 McNamara & Peepe Lumber Mill Soil and Groundwater
Monitoring Report shows offsite contamination south of the former green chain area.
DTSC, in response to a March 6, 2020 letter from Thomas Law Group, calculated dioxin
TEQs from this Report as follows:

e MW-1: 31pg/L
e MW-10: 0.1 pg/L
e MW-10 (FD): 3.7 pg/L

The DTSC-calculated TEQs for groundwater in MW-1 and MW-10 exceed the Project
Goal of 0.05 pg/L, and results in MW-10 show that a dioxin plume of contaminated
groundwater has moved beneath private residences south of the Site, on the opposite
side of a channelized surface stream.

Recent additional data submitted to the Humboldt County Department of Planning and
Building® show that the extent of contamination to the east is undefined. A groundwater
sample collected from TWP-02 at a piece of property being considered for development
shows dioxin TEQ contamination at 0.33 pg/L, according to our calculation. We note
that this parcel, APN 516-111-064, is listed on DTSC EnviroStor website as a part of the
26-acre McNamara and Peepe Lumber Mill site.*

Zhttps://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/deliverable documents/8383564591/Decertification%20%5B
DTSC%2012-28-18%5D.pdf
? Soil and Groundwater Assessment Summary of Findings, APN 516-111-0674, Glendale Drive, Blue Lake,
California. SHN April 7, 2020 memo to Michael Brosgart.

Wps://www.envir gov/public/p _report?g id=1 15




The offsite contamination results show that DTSC needs to do more groundwater
sampling to determine the downgradient and cross-gradient extent of the plume.
Knowing the full extent of the plume is a prerequisite for developing any remediation
plan.

The Report stated that MW-5, the closest monitoring well to the former green chain
area, could not be sampled because of a rusted lid. A part of future sampling plans
would be to ensure that the rusted lid on MW-5 is repaired and functional.

Il. Surface water adjacent to the contaminated groundwater plume needs to be
sampled.

An unnamed channelized stream or ditch running along the southern edge of the site
conveys water when wet. Depth to groundwater is typically about 7-10 feet along the
southern edge of the site, and the depth of the ditch is on the order of just a few feet
(approximately 3-5 feet). Upon intense and sustained rainfall events, there is the
potential that groundwater feeds water in the ditch through subsurface travel from a
temporarily elevated water table. A pathway for groundwater to feed surface water in
the ditch, if it exists, would represent a potential for contaminated water to be routed
to Hall Creek and in turn to the Mad River.

lll. Need for quarterly groundwater and surface water monitoring.

Going forward, a quarterly groundwater and surface water program needs to be
implemented. Quarterly groundwater monitoring was instituted in January 2015 for
pentachlorophenol (PCP) and tetrachlorophenol (TCP) and was terminated in December
2017. Given the detections of offsite groundwater contamination, it is imperative that
quarterly groundwater monitoring be reinstituted for a full suite of CoCs, including
dioxins.

IV. Sampling at the former McNord Lumber Mill and site of former dip tank building.

Soil and groundwater sampling for dioxins, pentachlorophenol, and other CoCs needs to
be conducted at the former McNord Lumber Mill (1610 Glendale Drive, APN 516-151-
019) where PCP was detected in groundwater at 0.49 ppb in 2003.5 An application for
voluntary oversight was submitted by the property owner to DTSC and the RWQCB on
October 24, 2019; to date, no work has been performed under this agreement.

The property with the former dip tank building, APN 516-111-003, should also be
conducted, since it was clearly part of the McNamara and Peepe operations before PCP
was banned for use in lumber products. We note that this parcel, APN 516-111-003, is

® 2003 Phase Il Investigation, Blue Lake Forest Products/Aalfs Property, 1589 Glendale Drive. p.11



SECTION g ‘L}_, PAGENO._A___

also listed on DTSC EnviroStor website as a part of the 26-acre McNamara and Peepe
Lumber Mill site.®

According to County records, the hazardous material was place on site in 40 drums in
1985, where it remained until 2003. It was removed after a notice of violation of County
regulations for hazardous materials was issued in 2002, but to our knowledge, there has
not been any soil or groundwater sampling on this parcel.

We appreciate the opportunity to comment as your agency prepares to conduct
additional sampling in preparation for further remediation of the Site.

Sincerely,
(y’&mwgm Cakt

Jennifer Kalt, Director
ikalt@humboldtbaykeeper.org

Cc:

Steve Madrone, Humboldt County Supervisor for the Fifth District

John Ford, Director, Humboldt County Planning and Building Department

Anne Baptiste, Thomas Law Group/Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Jacob Pounds, Environmental Programs Specialist/Assistant Tribal Historic Preservation
Officer, Blue Lake Rancheria

Dave Feral, Mad River Alliance

https://www s 1.gov/p profile report?global id=12240115




New Business



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: June 2, 2020

Re: LAFCO Municipal Service Review
Background / History

The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) is responsible for conducting Municipal Service Reviews
(MSR) which include reviews of agency spheres of influence (SOI). According to the Cortese Knox
Hertzberg Act, MSR’s are to be conducted every 5 years. LAFCo’s last MSR of HBMWD occurred in 2009,
so the District is due. Staff has been informed by LAFCo that the District’s MSR will occur within the next
six months. See the attached Humboldt LAFCo Municipal Service Review Overview for an explanation of
the MSR process. Also attached is a copy of the February 24, 2009 staff memo and last District MSR
Agency Profile.

Discussion

The interaction between the MSR with SOI and our Water Resource Planning objective to increase local
sales prompts a discussion regarding possible changes to the District’s sphere of influence. The other
factor that is converging is that with the occurrence of the US Census during 2020, the District will be
required to re-align District Director Division boundaries based on census population data by precinct
once the census data is released (Elections Code Section 22000). Hypothetically, if the Directors were to
choose to extend the District’s sphere of influence to include more of Humboldt County’s population,
initiation of that process concurrent with division boundary re-alignment might be opportune and more
efficient. If desired, this process would involve working closely with LAFCo and other agencies.

As previously discussed with the Board, there are two options with the Water Board under our water
rights permit for providing water to beneficial users outside our current District boundaries.

1. Change Petition before the SWRCB

a. Process: Prepare a memorandum of understanding/planning agreement (in
compliance with the CEQA) with the recipient of the water. Then prepare the CEQA
document, which includes a change in the place of use by the SWRCB as part of the
project (and that lists the SWRCB as a responsible agency). At the completion of the
CEQA process, sign a service agreement with the recipient and then file a petition to
expand the place of use with the SWRCB for this specific purpose.

. Advantage: This is a process to accomplish results for a specific potential project.

c. Disadvantage: If there will be more than one project, this will be very expensive and

time-consuming.

2. Change the District boundaries
a. Process: Through LAFCo (either by means of a municipal service review or otherwise)
find that it would improve the delivery of governmental services within the County to
expand the District’s boundaries to all/part of the County. After LAFCo’s process is
complete, then apply to the SWRCB showing LAFCo’s findings and request a change




of place of use of the District’s water rights to conform to the newly expanded
boundaries of the District.

b. Advantage: Depending upon LAFCo process, this could be relatively simple and
straightforward and offers good rationale for the SWRCB. If there are multiple
potential projects/customers, this minimizes the administrative procedures.

c. Disadvantage: If opposition is encountered during LAFCo process, then this could be
a lengthy and costly process. Changing the District boundaries inherently changes the
constituency of the respective Divisions and potentially the political make up of our
Board.

Next Steps

Staff will await contact from LAFCo to conduct their MSR and SOI of the District and inform the Board
when that occurs. Depending upon the Board direction, staff may or may not expand discussions
regarding the District’s SOI to include additional areas outside the current District boundaries.



_HUMBOLDT ™

b\ Local Agency Formation Commission

Municipal Service Review Overview

What is LAFCo?

Local Agency Formation Commissions, known as LAFCo, were created in each county by the California State
Legislature in 1963. LAFCos have regulatory and planning responsibilities to coordinate the timely development
of local governmental agencies and their services while protecting agricultural and open-space resources. Most
notably, this includes managing jurisdictional boundary changes by approving or disapproving proposals
involving the formation, expansion, consolidation, or dissolution of cities and special districts. LAFCos also
conduct studies to help perform its regulatory duties. Specifically, municipal service reviews (MSRs) are
prepared to evaluate the level and range of services prior to adopting spheres of influence (SOls) for each city
and special district.

What is a Municipal Service Review?

LAFCo prepares municipal service reviews prior to or in conjunction with its mandate to review and update each
local agency’s SOl every five years or as necessary. The MSR process is intended to inform the Commission as to
the availability, capacity, and efficiency of local governmental services prior to making SOl determinations.

What is a Sphere of Influence?

State law defines a sphere of influence as “a plan for the probable physical boundaries and service area of a local
agency, as determined by the commission”. All boundary changes, such as annexations and detachments, must
be consistent with adopted SOIs with limited exceptions.

What is included in a Municipal Service Review?

A MSR provides details regarding an agency’s formation, development, adopted boundaries, population trends
and projections, organizational structure, municipal service provision, and financial attributes. For each MSR,
LAFCo must prepare a written statement of the required determinations under Government Code §56430,
which include the following:

(1) Growth and population projections for the affected area.

(2) The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous
to the sphere of influence.

(3) Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and
structural fire protection in any disadvantaged unincorporated communities? within or contiguous to the
sphere of influence.

! A Disadvantaged Unincorporated Community (DUC) is an inhabited territory (containing 12 or more registered voters)
where the annual median household income (MHI) is less than 80 percent of the statewide annual MHI. As of 2018, the
statewide MHI was $71,228, so unincorporated areas with a MHI of less than $56,982 would be considered DUCs. These
areas are looked at in greater detail to ensure that basic needs are met with regard to adequate water, wastewater, and
fire protection services.

A mace NO./?



secTioN_9)- | _ pacE NO,
(4) Financial ability of agencies to provide services.

(5) Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.

(6) Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational
efficiencies.

(7) Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.
How is the Sphere of Influence Updated?

LAFCo is responsible for establishing, amending, and updating spheres of influence for all cities and special
districts. Generally, LAFCo reviews SOls as part of the MSR proéess and either adopts or amends them as
necessary. Additionally, a city or special district may apply to LAFCo to amend their sphere at any particular time
if a need arises. Before the SOI can be updated, the Commission must make several determinations as outlined
in Government Code Section 56425(e), which include the following:

(1) Present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands.
(2) Present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area.

(3) Present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides or is
authorized to provide.

(4) Existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission determines
that they are relevant to the agency.

(5) Foran update of a sphere of influence of a city or special district that provides public facilities or services
related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, the present and probable
need for those public facilities and services of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within
the existing sphere.

How can an MSR be use by the subject agency?

An MSR can be used in several ways by the subject agency, LAFCo, and other planning entities. It provides a
comprehensive overview of the agency which can be referred to and utilized in other planning documents,
reports, and grant applications. Examples of uses include:

a) Boundary change options. The MSR can provide a brief overview of the pros and cons associated with
different types of jurisdictional boundary changes and the steps necessary to make the change. This can
then be provided to the agency’s governing body and area residents for decision making and
informational purposes.

b) Infrastructure and service needs. The MSR can provide an overview of the agency’s infrastructure
needs, opportunities for shared facilities, and capacity to meet current and future service demands. This
can help inform possible expansion of the sphere of influence based on need for public facilities and
services in the area.

c) Governance options. At times, an agency may need to reassess how it is governed. The MSR can
provide options for different governance structures such as a reduced or expanded Board of Directors,
possible changes to service zones or divisions, changing from a dependent district to an independent
district, or possible consolidation with another agency.

d) Financing options. The MSR can provide an agency with an in-depth review of revenues versus
expenditures over a three to five-year period. This can help determine the financial health of the agency
and provide options for long-term revenue sources to strengthen the financial status of the agency.

Y



9\000\

Carol Rische

—

From: Adminsitrator [admini humboldtlafco.org]
Sent:  Tuesday, ebruary 24, 2009 438 PM
To: hbmwd northcoast com

Subject: Humboldt LAFCo Information Request

Hello Ms. Rische,

fam wrlt/mg on behalf of the Humboldt Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) to request your assistance

LAFCo is preparing mandated MSRs and Sphere of Influenc

updates for all districts within Humboldt County

with a Municipal Service Review (MSR) for your district, the gba@ Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD).

A ]

that have not been updated within the last 5 years. In order to complete the MSR for your district, LAFCo needs
to gather gurrent information about your district’s services, infrastructure, etc.

Please co
by Monday

te the attached Agency Profile and return it as soon as possible. 1 hope to get this back from you
I\@gbz/”@ ThlS will allow me to complete the draft report send-i

arch 18"

any questions you may have regardlng this information request.. | can also make myself available to meet with

you at your convenience, if necessary.

I'have saved the questionnaire in a format that should be compatible with your operating system, but if you
have trouble, please iet me know and | will send a paper copy. Feei free to enter the information eiectronicaiiy
and return via email, or print out and fax to the number listed below. Please also send a current map showing
the district boundary, sphere of influence, and response areas.

Sincerely,

Jennifer Longman
Humboldt LAFCo Administrator
administrator@humboldtiafco.org
1125 16th Street, Suite 202
Arcata, CA 95521

P: 707-445-7508

F: 707-825-9181

3/17/2009

Q\nﬂe LAvco

" Diecna J
W prepond 4 sobmgad
MR seretad ogens g
oy o
MGt (n Sty )
“Yhs s o pdaky (AR

o

you for revisions, and have the
Feel free to contact me with



(9__@00\ ““““ i

Agency Profile
Agency Name Date of Formation Enabling Legislation
Humboldt Bay Municipal March 19, 1956 California Municipal Water
.Water District Act
Contact Person Contact Title Email/Website
Email:
Carol Rische General Manager
Website:
A A http://www.hbmwd.com/home
Mailing Address Physical Address __Phonel/Fax
Humboldt Bay Municipal Humboldt Bay Phone: (707) 443-5018
Water District Municipal Water District
P.O. Box 95 828 Seventh Street Fax: (707) 443-5731
Eureka, CA 95502 Eureka, CA 95502

Governance Structure and Administration

1.

If the primary district contact person differs from the information provided above, please
provide the contact name, number and title below for the district’s primary contact.

N/A

The names, titles, and term expiration date for governing board / council.
Name Title Up for re-election
Kaitlin Sopoci-Belknap President 11/2012

Aldaron Laird Vice-President 11/2010

Barbara Hecathorn Secretary/Treasurer 11/2012

Tera Prucha Asst. Sec/Treasurer 11/2012

Bruce Rupp Director 11/2010

Are the board / council members elected?
Yes, they are elected.

Number of full-time 23, part-time 1-3 (seasonally) and volunteer staff 0.

How are agency service, infrastructure and budget decisions made?

Decisions are made by the Board after recommendations by staff.



section 9| | _pacENO._F __

A9

6. Please provide the following documents if applicable:
» Agency organizational chart-See Attached
s Agency strategic plan(s)-NA )
e Capital Improvement Plan-See Attached - /77cen Vo 5‘%’- ﬁ%'/fgé_
» Planning documents-NA

7. How often are district board/council meetings held and how are meetings noticed?
Regular Board meetings are held the second Thursday of the month. Special meetings

are called as needed. The meetings are noticed via email, website, posting and a few via
US Mail.

Services Provided

Service Summary Matrix

Service Customers Currently Served Total Service Capacity
SRR : # - (# Cust.)
Water R whelisale {189 el
1. Please provide the following information pertaining to the district’s water distribution

facility:
* A brief description of the district’s infrastructure (i.e. wells, pumps, treatment
facilities, pipelines);

See existing MSR

o Infrastructure needs and deficiencies; and

See existing MSR and CIP

¢ Planned projects and improvements

See existing MSR and CIP



2009 section ! _pmeznoS____

—

2. Please provide a brief description of other agencies and/or districts whose boundaries
overlap or share borders with your agency (e.g., the district and/or agency name and the
service provided).

HBMWD operates at the wholesale level. Our seven member agencies ( 3 cities and 4
CSD) are within our District boundries.

3. Please provide a list of other agencies to which your agency provides service support.

Wholesale water provided to:

Arcata and 4 CSD’s McKinleyville
Blue Lake Fieldbrook-Glendale
Eureka ' Manila

Humboldt

4. Is your district considering a boundary expansion in the near future? If yes, please provide
a brief description of the boundary expansion.

No, not unless an adjacent entity has a service requirement that we can potentially serve.

Please provide the following documents:
e A copy of the district’s most recently adopted budget — See Attached
e Agency’s adopted rate structure(s)- See Attached (Ordinance 16)

[y

2. The amount of the district’s total outstanding debt?
20 year zero-percent interest State SRF loan for Regional Treatment Plant. Remaining

obligation =§7.9 million.

3. If the district has outstanding debt, when will the debt be expired with the current
repayment schedule?

2020

Thank you!



SECTION _ q Z _,PAGE NO. __l__..._.

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7% Street, Eureka

Agenda for Special Joint Meeting of HBMWD Board of
Directors with the Ruth Lake Community Services District
Board of Directors
Via Zoom due to COVID-19

June 26,2020
9:00 a.m.

COVID-19 NOTICE

Consistent with Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 from the Executive Department of
the State of California and the Humboldt County Public Health Officer’s March 19, 2020
Shelter-in-Place Order, the HBMWD Board members will be participating via Zoom.
Members of the public may also participate in the meeting online at:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87008433024 Or join the meeting by phone at 1-669-900-9128.
Enter meeting ID 870 0843 3024. Password is: 002744

How to Submit Public Comment: Members of the public may provide public comment before and
during the Board Meeting. Emailed comments can sent to the HBMWD Board Secretary at
sobol@hbmwd.com until 8:45 am the day of the meetmg Email comments must identify the agenda
item in the subject line of the email. Written comments may also be malled to 828 7% Street, Eureka,
CA 95501.Written comments should identify the agenda item number. Comments received prior to
the meeting will be read into the record.

JOINT BOARD MEETING-9:00 am.

Meeting of the HBMWD and RL.CSD Board of Directors to discuss issues or
events regarding Ruth Lake and the buffer strip of mutual interest

1. Introductions/Roll:Call

2. Public Comment

Members of the public are invited to address the Board on items not listed on the
agenda that are within the scope and jurisdiction of the District. At the discretion of
the President, comments may be limited to three minutes per person. The public will
be given the opportunity to address items that ave on the agenda at the time the
Board takes up that item.

3. Updates from Guests:
a. Trinity County - 5™ District Supervisor and Staff
US Forest Service
Trinity County Volunteer Fire Department and /or STAR
Trinity County Sheriff/OES
Ruth Lake Leaseholders Association
Any other guests

o e o



SECTION_ &] 3 _ PAGE NO. ¢ o

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7' Street, Eureka

Agenda for Special Joint Meeting of HBMWD Board of
Directors with the Ruth Lake Community Services District
Board of Directors
Via Zoom due to COVID-19

June 26,2020
9:00 a.m.

4. HBMWD Topics
4.1 Aquatic Invasive Species:
1. 2019 Annual Report- discuss

2. Dept. of Boating and Waterways Quagga Prevention
Grants

3. Any issues or areas of concern — discuss

4.2 Law Enforcement on Ruth Lake -
4.3 Tree Removal Policy - discuss
4.4 Cannabis Cultivation in the Mad River Watershed
a. discussion re: cutrent enforcement efforts
b. input re: ideas or issues to address
5. Ruth Lake CSD Topics.
5.1 Lease Lots: area of concern- discilsg

ADJOURNMENT

At 1:30 pm there will be a staft- level z;ieeting to discuss:

‘a) HBMWD’s Emergency Action Plan (EAP) for Matthews Dam: Face-to-Face
meeting with HBMWD, RLCSD USFS, Trinity County Sheriff/OES, STAR
and Southern Tnmty ‘Volunteer Fire Department staff to discuss the EAP,
especially notification flow charts

(Posted and mailed June 19,2020)



Firefox

lof1l

Renewable Properties, LLC \ —
655 Montgomery Street, Suite 1430 ._ : RSN VY 640k
San Francisco, CA 94111 '\ CE PROPERTIES

www.renewprop.com

April 30, 2020

Joshua Z. Dorris

Senior Planner

Humboldt County Planning and Building Department
3015 H. Street

Eureka, CA 95501

Dear Joshua,

RE: Humboldt County Planning Case Number PLN-2020-16320
Hatchery Road Solar - Project Narrative

On behalf of RPCA 5 Solar, LLC we submit this letter as a description of the Hatchery Road Solar Project
(Project), a small-scale commercial energy generating facility that will be located on approximately 26.56
acres? of two adjoining parcels that together total approximately 38 acres of undeveloped land. The two
adjoining undeveloped parcels include APNs 313-091-019 (31.91 acres), and 313-091-020 (6.27 acres)
which are situated just south of an existing rock quarry.

We have entered into a long-term lease agreement with the property owner, Victor Guhyup Trust and
Dorthea Gunyup Trust. The Project will generate approximately 4 megawatts (MW) of alternating current
(AC) emission free, clean, renewable power. The Project will interconnect to PG&E's pre-existing electrical
distribution system located along Hatchery Road. Power generated by this facility will be sold to the
Redwood Coast Energy Authority (RCEA) through a long-term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA).

The Project will utilize 14,336 modules and 32 string inverters which convert the sun's energy into usable
AC power. Single axis tracking technology will be utilized to allow the modules to efficiently track the sun
throughout the day and maximize the efficiency of solar collection. The modules will be mounted on a
steel racking system, which will be anchored into the ground using driven steel piers. The overall height
of the array will be no more than 8-feet tall as measured from existing grade.

We are excited to work with the County-to advance this project through the local land use review and
approval process. Please let us know if you have any questions about our application. We look forward to
your comments on this application and a description review process and timeline ahead.

Sincerely,

RENEWABLE PROPERTIES

Ste—

Stephanie Loucas
Vice President, Development
415-710-3834

1 26.56 acres represents the footprint of the project within its proposed fence line.

secTion_.4 paceNO._|____

5/21/2020, 11:58 A



SECTION_G, % PAGE NO,

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: June 4, 2020

Re: Self-Generation Incentive Program (SGIP)
Discussion

The California Public Utilities Commission authorized two SGIP programs. See attached summary by RCEA.
(Packet Section 9.5 pages 3 through 6) The District was approached by two separate vendors offering
services to the District to complete the necessary SGIP applications and install a battery power bank at
the District’s Essex facility. Staff entertained both vendors initial conceptual discussions to determine if
there would be a significant financial benefit to the District.

The first vendor, EDF Renewables, suggested the District participate in the Equity SGIP.
1. Equity - $850/kWh Incentive.
Criteria:
a. Must be government or municipal facilities or tax-exempt non-profit.
b. Must be located in a Low Income or Disadvantaged Community.

Their proposal was that the District would pay for the battery bank and then re-coup the investment cost
over the life of the incentive and battery bank. Their projected cost to the District was $1.7 million over
two years. Staff determined that the District did not have sufficient reserves to pursue participation in
this program.

The second vendor, Tesla, suggested that the District participate in the Equity Resilience SGIP.
2. Equity - $1,000/kWh Incentive.
Criteria:
a. Must be a “Critical Facility” which includes Water Facilities.
b. Must be located in a High Fire Threat District.
c. Must serve at least 1 customer in a Low Income or Disadvantaged Community.

Their proposal was that the District would pay an initial application fee of $100 and then Tesla would pay
the entire cost of the project including maintenance over a 10-year period. The projected PG&E billing
savings to the District is $2M over 10 years. See attached Tesla Commercial Energy Storage document.
(Packet Section 9.5 pages 7 through 11) The total project costs are approximately $3M with zero cost to
the District. The only incremental cost to the District would be to provide high speed internet service to
the battery bank for operation, maintenance and reporting. The District’s cost for internet would be more
than offset by the savings in PG&E costs through utilization of the battery bank. See attached Tesla
Standard Non-Disclosure Agreement and Tesla Energy Products Purchase Agreement. (Packet Section 9.5
pages 12 through 34) District Counsel has reviewed these agreements and identified some concerns with
the Confidentiality Agreement. Specifically, since we are a public agency and subject to the Public Records
Act, we cannot agree to keeping this agreement strictly confidential as requested. Staff has requested
specific language to address this issue and is awaiting a revised agreement.

—— o 208 e



SECTION 925 PAGENO.__ Q.

Staff would coordinate with Tesla such that the battery bank project would be constructed after the
completion of our current 12kV Switch Gear relocation project.

There are some minor expense responsibilities to the District under the contract. They include: 1) “Extra
Services” during the 10-year period; 2) Installation outside their “standard scope”; 3) PG&E costs in excess
of $1,000 for interconnection; 4) high speed internet provided to the site. Compared to the projected
savings in reduced PG&E costs, staff anticipates that all of these contract expense responsibilities will be
satisfied.

Next Steps
Staff requests that the Board authorize participation in the Equity Resilience SGIP with Tesla as our vendor.

And direct staff to enter into the necessary agreements and authorize construction of the proposed
battery bank facility at Essex.

Staff further request that the Board authorize participation in the Equity Resilience SGIP with Tesla as our
vendor for a battery bank facility at the Turbidity Reduction Facility. Calculations for that proposal by Tesla
are in process. Since this SGIP program is over subscribed and projects are being wait listed, staff would
like authorization to move forward should the cost savings projections at the TRF be similar to those at
Essex based on the relative electric consumption at the TRF.



SECTION 9, S ,PAGENO,_ 3 __

Self-Generation Incentive Program (SGIP)
May 2020
Summary

In 2019, The California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) released two decisions regarding the Self-
Generation Incentive Program (SGIP). The first, made in September 2019, referred to as the Equity-
Resiliency decision, increased battery storage incentive rates to $0.85/Wh for customers in eligible low-
income or disadvantaged communities. This decision also approved a resiliency adder of $0.15/Wh for
customers who meet eligibility criteria but are located in Tier 2 or Tier 3 High Fire Threat Districts (HFTD)
and are defined as having ‘critical resiliency needs.’ The second recent CPUC decision, released in
December 2019, proposed an expanded definition of critical resiliency needs to include resiliency
customers who experienced power shut offs during two or more discrete PSPS events. It also proposed
the resiliency adder of $0.15/Wh for general market customers.

Many Humboldt County public agency sites of interest for energy storage will be eligible for either the
$0.85/Wh incentive or $1.00/Wh

The table below shows the updated incentive rates and step-down structures from the two recent CPUC
decisions.
SGIP Equity and Equlty Resullency Incentlves

anentlv "f.’pe L gieih-3 ; { 7F ‘Newlncentave Rate

General Market SGIP Step 3 $0.35/Wh
General Market with Resiliency Adder $0.50/Wh
Equity Budget Storage Incentive $0.85/Wh
Equity Resiliency Budget Storage Incentive $1.00/Wh

SGIP Eligibility Criteria

To be eligible for the SGIP Equity Budget Incentive ($0.85/Wh), Public Agency sites of interest for energy
storage must be located within low-income communities. For SGIP purposes, a low-income community
is defined as census tracts with median household incomes at or below 80% of the statewide median
income, or with median household incomes at or below the threshold designated as low-income by the
Department of Housing and Community Development’s list of state income limits adopted pursuant to
Section 50093. An interactive map of census tracts meeting these criteria is linked below, but RCEA
recommends corroborating map data with the most current available census tract data.

Sites of interest that experienced two or more discrete PSPS events in 2019, and currently provide
critical resiliency services (defined below) to communities who experienced two or more PSPS events,

are also eligible for the SGIP’s Resiliency Adder ($1.00/Wh).

Critical resiliency services are further defined as:



secion_ 115 paceno,_ 4

——

Police stations; fire stations; emergency response providers as defined in D.19-05-042; emergency
operations centers; 911 call centers, also referred to as Public Safety Answering Points; medical facilities
including hospitals, skilled nursing facilities, nursing homes, blood banks, health care facilities, dialysis
centers and hospice facilities; public and private gas, electric, water, wastewater or flood control
facilities; jails and prisons; locations designated by the I0Us to provide assistance during PSPS events;
cooling centers designated by state or local governments; and, homeless shelters supported by federal,
state, or local governments; grocery stores, corner stores, markets and supermarkets that have average
annual gross receipts of $15 million or less, over the last three tax years; independent living centers;
and, food banks.

A complete description of Non-Residential Equity Resiliency Eligibility (51.00/Wh) can be found on the
CPUC's SGIP website:

SGIP Non-Residential Eligibility Matrix:
https://www.selfgenca.com/documents/handbook/non-res matrix

Receiving SGIP Incentives

To be eligible for SGIP incentives, battery storage systems must fully discharge to site loads at least 104
times per year, or the energy (kWh) equivalent of 104 full discharges. A “full discharge” is the equivalent
of discharging the SGIP-incentivized energy capacity, whether it is during single or multiple discharges.

For non-residential customers, 50% of the eligible incentive will be paid upon project completion and
verification. The remaining 50% will be paid as a performance-based incentive (PBI) and is structured
such that the performance payments, based on expected operational requirements, will be paid
annually for five years. For PBI purposes, all non-residential projects must install metering and
monitoring equipment that measures net electrical output or offset from the system(s).

Customers must work with an “Approved” Developer or apply as a “Developer” to process the incentive
themselves, and incentives can be paid to customer or installer. A complete list of approved developers
is linked below.

SGIP also requires that non-residential projects reduce GHGs by a minimum of 5 kgCO,/kWh annually
during the PBI period to recoup full payment. An energy storage system would likely discharge energy
most often during the peak periods (4 PM —9 PM), when potential to reduce GHGs is highest, satisfying
SGIP GHG abatement requirements.

Additional SGIP Requirements

Incentive Considerations

(1) For equity budget projects that receive incentive from other sources, the SGIP incentive will be
reduced, as needed, so that the SGIP incentive and external funding combined do not exceed the total
installed costs of the system.

(2) The ITC adjustment to large-scale general and equity budget storage incentives, effective for
equipment purchased after December 31, 2021. The CPUC also eliminates the ITC adjustment for large-
scale equity resiliency and equity budget storage projects for equipment purchased after December 31,
2021.




e e s

(3) Equity budget and equity resiliency budget projects are exempt from the developer cap of 20 percent
of SGIP incentive funding for a given budget category per statewide incentive step.

System Requirements

(1) All systems receiving incentives under the SGIP that discharge electricity must be connected to the
local electric utility’s distribution system and must be installed on the Host Customer’s side of the
electric utility meter.

(2) Energy storage systems must also be configured to operate in parallel with the grid.

(3) For PBI purposes, all SGIP technologies 30 kW or larger must install metering and monitoring
equipment that measures net electrical output or offset from the system(s). Conversely, storage
projects less than 30 kW that are paired with and charging from on-site renewable generators must
have the ability to provide data in the event of an audit, and may utilize metering and monitoring
equipment that is already part of the system.

(4) Energy storage systems that discharge electricity must measure the net electrical energy during
charge and discharge cycles.

Developers applying for the equity resiliency incentive, a general market energy storage or a renewable
generation resiliency incentive adder and all general market energy storage and equity budget projects
with a longer than two-hour discharge duration must:

(a) Provide an estimate of how long a project’s fully charged battery— or renewable generation
system— will provide electricity for the relevant facility average load during an outage;

(b) Indicate whether a project’s critical loads can and will be isolated;

(c) Provide an estimate of how long a project’s fully charged battery—or renewable generation system—
will provide electricity to critical uses during an outage;

(d) Provide an estimate of how long the project can operate in less-than-favorable circumstances, such
as if an outage occurs when an energy storage system has been

discharged or during the winter (for systems paired with solar), or while experiencing similar challenges
for renewable generation systems;

(e) Summarize information given to the customer about how the customer may best prepare an energy
storage system to provide backup power— or, ensure operation of a

renewable generation system— in the case of a Public Safety Power Shutoff event announced in
advance;

(f) Attest to the truth of the information provided;

(g) Provide an attestation from the customer indicating that he or she received this information prior to
signing a contract; and

(h) Demonstrate that an Authority Having Jurisdiction has approved plans showing that the system can
operate in island mode, has inspected the system after installation,

and has authorized operation.

Ineligible Equipment
The following equipment is not eligible for participation in the SGIP:

(1) Backup systems intended solely for emergency purposes.
(2) Any system/equipment that is capable of operating on, or switching to, diesel fuel or diesel cycle for
start-up or continuous operation.



secTion 915 PAGENO__(o

(3) Field demonstrations for proof-of-concept operation of experimental or non-conventional systems
partially or completely paid by research and development funds.

(4) Rebuilt, refurbished or relocated equipment (e.g. second life batteries).

(5) Equipment that has been interconnected for more than 12 months.

Resources and Links

AB 1550 Low Income Areas Equity Budget Eligibility Map:
https://ww3.arb.ga.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/lowincomemapfuH.htm

HFTD CPUC Map - Equity Resiliency Budget Eligibility:

https://ia.cpuc.ca.gov/firemap/

SGIP Incentive Tracker:
https://www.selfgenca.com/home/program metrics/

Approved Developer List:
https://www.seIfgenca.com/documents/developer/approved

SGIP Resources:
https://www.selfgenca.com/home/resources/

Example PBI Payment for a two-hour system:

100 kWh system at $.50/Wh

Total incentive: 100,000 Wh * $.50/Wh = $50,000

Upfront payment: $50,000 / 2 = $25,000

Remaining payment to be recuperated through PBI: $50,000 / 2 = $25,000
Total anticipated kWh discharged/offset:

100 kWh * 130 full discharges * 5 years = 65,000 kWh

$/kWh for anticipated kWh discharged/offset: $25,000 / 65,000 kWh = $0.3846154/kWh
PBI payment per year assuming 130 full discharges: 13,000 kWh * $0.3846154/kWh = $5,000



——— o e e

TESLA COMMERCIAL ENERGY STORAGE

We take a long-term approach to ensure your energy storage system provides
maximum performance, simplified integration and all-weather capabilities. You have
peace of mind knowing that Tesla has successfully deployed 2.5 million kilowatts of
solar and 2 million kilowatt hours of energy storage around the world.

g:;;?
5{5{

.
27

7
¥ 7 A
i

2l

,
i7
7

27

.

/

J

|

T

mm-\“&\‘w-v ,

I

kL : R
i RS
EM = .
y a—— =
H % = 7=
Heany . =
m — =
S =
B =
= =
——
=
—_—
T

A

B

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
7270 West End Rd, Arcata, CA 95521, US



SECTION 9.5 PAGE NO.

ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEM RATINGS

T=ESLA Battery Output Rating 980 kW
LT
\ '* Battery Size (17 Packs) 3,944 kWh
[==3
Battery Value $2,205,914
i Total Project Cost $0
Fully Charged Duration 8 hours
- 7 Average Duration 4 hours

I A EMERGENCY BACKUP
Powers a facility when the grid

goes down

PEAK SHAVING
Discharge at times of peak
demand to reduce expensive

demand charges



SECTION 4.5 PAGENO.— G __

PROPOSED SAVINGS PROJECTIONS

Battery Energy Storage System Savings

Estimated Annual Estimated Long Term
Electricity Savings Electricity Savings

$900,000

$800,000

$700,000 10 Year Value $2,084,904
$600,000

$500,000 20 Year Value $4,502,137
$400,000

$300,000

$200,000

$100,000

$0
Grid Only Grid + Battery

i Utility Bill Storage Savings

Additional Information
 Specific site/project specifics will need to be confirmed as part of the Site Survey & Permitting Process
e We recommend that you change to PG&E tariff B-20-P Option S (Storage) to increase your savings with
storage

briaward@tesia com | 174



SECTION_9: S PAGENO._LO

NEXT STEPS

Project Stage Timeline
Site Survey 2 days to 2 weeks

We will request some basic information from your site to prepare our
teams for your site survey.

SGIP Funding Allocation 4 to 6 weeks

The PG&E program is currently wait listing new applications until the
release of the next tranche of approved incentive funds. ETA Early
July, 2020

Permitting 2 to 6 weeks
We will submit permit to the appropriate regulatory agency.

Installation 2 to 4 weeks
We will commence installation of your new system once permit is

received.

Final Inspections 2 to 4 weeks

Once installation is complete, we will schedule an inspection with the
appropriate regulatory agency and the utility.

Permission to Operate 4 to 6 weeks
Your utility will grant you permission to operate your new system.

Ongoing Support

Visit Tesla's support page to learn more about your system and feel
free to contact us anytime with questions.

* The proposal and contract are only valid for 30 days after Tesla issuance to the customer



PAGENO._ ||

A

=]

—e e

SECTION 9

PROPOSED SYSTEM LAYOUT

AYVNINNIYL

1o1-3

NVId 3LS

SITCY

SINVNZIN VA HCH CRINCTE

FONVAIVI™D) LNG 4 NI
newo)is a3uNCIy 39 TIM

$8300Y oNe”

VO 'Vivouvy
QY aN3 1S3M 0L2L

LOI1SIA HILYM TVdIDINAW AVE LATO8WNH

W3LSAS IOVHOLS ADYINI AYILLIVE "

SO AL

90 NCLSMLENDD HOd CIENCSE

30 TIM VIV TWNCUIOGY VIRl

AB GIONSWNODZY LKIBILCO=

WNAINIA ZHL MOKS SLOOAY:
SAIAAINDD FALYVHGN il T

SUNMAMIRI AN ORY
NOEAICSAN %207 L QETIVASN
NV CINORIA 38 CLNILAS T

“SNCLLGNC I ONILSIXE

40MINIY CHY A3ANCS 2118 ¥aLdv

QALK 30 0L NEBS) Tt
ANOAYY SALYZICHI ARYNINTEYN: )

" eaavmanauno
R iSINYA

SOVHOLE ADHINS A¥3LIVE

AUVIWWNS WILSAS

v

S3LON TvdaNID [




SECTION_ 9.5 PAGE NO._1

Standard Non-Disclosure Agreement
Effective Date: May 26, 2020 Tesla Contact: Brian Ward

This Standard Non-Disclosure Agreement (“NDA”) is entered as of the Effective Date between the Tesla entity (“Tesla”) and
the company or individual (“Company”) identified below. Tesla and each Company agree as follows:

1. Purpose. Tesla may disclose Confidential Information to Company in order to consider a potential business relationship
with each other or fulfill the objectives of such relationship (“Purpose™). “Confidential Information” means information
disclosed by Tesla or its Affiliate to Company or its Affiliate that is marked as confidential or proprietary, identified as
confidential or proprietary (e.g. if disclosed orally or visually), or disclosed under circumstances by which Company should
reasonably understand that such information is deemed by Tesla to be confidential or proprietary. All Confidential Information
and derivations thereof remain Tesla’s sole property, and no license or other right to Confidential Information or any intellectual
property is granted or implied by this NDA or any disclosure. Tesla is not required to disclose any information hereunder. All
Confidential Information is provided on an “AS IS” basis. Tesla disclaims any and all representations, warranties, or assurances
concerning the Confidential Information, including as to accuracy, performance, completeness, suitability, or third-party rights.

2. Confidentiality. Subject to Section 3, Company and its Affiliates may not: (a) use Confidential Information for any reason
except the Purpose; or (b) disclose Confidential Information to any individual or third party except to its personnel, directors,
consultants, professional advisors, and Affiliates, or (to the extent expressly approved in writing by Tesla) other unaffiliated
third parties, in each case that (i) have a “need to know” such Confidential Information for the Purpose and (ii) are bound to
confidentiality obligations that protect Confidential Information to at least the same extent as the terms of this NDA
(collectively, “Authorized Recipients”); or (c) make any public disclosures relating to the existence of this NDA or the Purpose
without Tesla’s prior written consent; or (d) identify, or attempt to identify, any data subject (e.g. one or more individuals,
vehicles, products, or entities) through any de-identified or anonymous data disclosed by Tesla. Company shall implement and
maintain appropriate organizational, technical, and administrative security measures, exercising the same degree of care to
protect Confidential Information that it uses for its own confidential information of a similar nature, but in no event less than
reasonable care. Promptly after learning of any unauthorized use or disclosure of, and/or unauthorized attempts to access or
modify, any Confidential Information in Company’s (or its Authorized Recipients’) custody or control, Company shall notify
Tesla in writing and cooperate with Tesla to investigate and mitigate any adverse effects. Company shall be responsible for any
unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information by any of its Authorized Recipients.

3. Exceptions. The obligations of Section 2 will not apply to information that: (a) is already known to Company at the time
of disclosure without obligation of confidentiality, (b) is or becomes publicly known through no wrongful act or omission of
Company, (c) is rightfully received by Company from a third party without obligation of confidentiality, (d) is approved for
release by Tesla’s written authorization, or (¢) was developed by Company independently and without the use or benefit of any
Confidential Information. A disclosure that Company is required to make pursuant to any order or requirement of a court,
administrative agency, other governmental agency, or stock exchange will not be deemed a breach of Section 2 of this NDA,
provided that Company has to the extent permitted by law: (x) promptly notified Tesla in writing of such order or requirement,
(y) given Tesla an opportunity to challenge or limit the disclosure requirement or seek an appropriate protective order, and
(z) cooperated with Tesla to narrow the scope of such disclosure to only that portion of the Confidential Information that is
necessary to fulfill the order or requirement. A disclosure which complies with a U.S. Federal Acquisition Regulation
permitting disclosures to the government concerning government contracts will not be deemed a breach of this NDA. Each
party is hereby given notice of the immunity set forth in 18 USC § 1833(b).

4. Affiliate. “Affiliate” means an entity which either controls or is controlled by a party or is under common control with a
party, where “control” means the power to direct or cause the direction of an entity’s management and policies through
ownership or control of at least 50% of its voting securities or ownership interest.

5. Termination. This NDA is effective as of the Effective Date and will expire 3 years thereafter. Either party may terminate
this NDA for any or no reason by giving 60 days’ prior written notice to the other party. Expiration or termination shall not
affect a party’s rights or obligations with respect to Confidential Information disclosed before such expiration or termination,
and such rights or obligations will continue as long as Company or its Affiliate has custody of or control over Confidential
Information. Upon expiration or termination of this NDA or Tesla’s written request, Company shall promptly return to Tesla
all Confidential Information or certify in writing that all Confidential Information has been destroyed. Sections 2, 3, and 5-7
will survive for 5 years after the expiration or termination of this NDA.

6. Disputes; Venue. This NDA is governed by the laws of the county, state, and country specified below Tesla’s signature,
in each case without regard to conflict of laws principles. Company will be jointly and severally responsible for the acts and
omissions of its Affiliates and each Authorized Recipient. The rights of and damages incurred by a Tesla Affiliate will be
deemed to be rights of and damages incurred by Tesla. The Parties shall discuss in good faith a resolution to any conflict or
dispute under this NDA. The exclusive venue for any judicial action arising out of or relating to this NDA will be the state,
federal, or regional courts for the location specified below Tesla’s signature. The parties, for themselves and their respective

VSR R ot e o T e g e o Ry S L it R A S et O T e 2 e SR R A YR O TR R
Tesla, Inc. — Standard NDA (November 2019) 1of2 Confidential Information



_
SECTION 9,0 _PAGENO.__|3_

Standard Non-Disclosure Agreement
Affiliates and Authorized Recipients, hereby waive any challenge to venue and jurisdiction in such courts. If Tesla substantially
prevails in any action to enforce this NDA, it will be entitled to recover its costs of enforcement from Company and its
Affiliates, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. Company acknowledges that breach of this NDA would cause Tesla irreparable
harm for which monetary damages would not provide an adequate remedy and Tesla will, in addition to any other available
remedies, be entitled to temporary and permanent injunctive relief with respect to such breach without proof of actual damages
or the posting of bond or other security.

7. Miscellaneous. This NDA constitutes the entire agreement between the parties regarding its subject matter and supersedes
all prior agreements, representations, and understandings, between the parties regarding its subject matter. If any provision
hereofis held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, such provision shall be changed and interpreted
so as to best accomplish the objectives of the original provision to the fullest extent allowed by law, and the remaining
provisions of this NDA shall remain in full force and effect. This NDA is written in the English language, and the English
version shall prevail over any translation thereof. A waiver of any right hereunder does not imply waiver of any other rights.
No waiver, alteration, modification, or amendment of this NDA shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both parties.
This NDA may be signed in duplicate originals or in separate counterparts, each of which is effective as if the parties signed a
single original, and a facsimile of an original signature or electronically signed version transmitted to the other party is effective
as if the original was sent to the other party. Any notice required or permitted by this NDA shall be made in writing and be
deemed delivered upon verification of delivery to the other party. Company may not assign, transfer, or otherwise convey or
delegate any of its rights or duties under this NDA (except to the successor in a merger, acquisition, or corporate reorganization
of Company) without Tesla’s prior written consent, and any attempt to do so shall be void.

Tesla and each Company execute this Standard Non-Disclosure Agreement through their duly authorized representatives.

Tesla: Tesla, Inc. Company:

Signed: Signed:

Printed:_Stephen Pollock Printed: i — r
ir

Title: Sr. Manager, Energy - America Sales C&l Title: TS ||
YRR o

Date: Date: = "

Contact Information: Contact Information:

Legal Department Name/Dept.:

PO Box 15430, Fremont CA 94539, USA Address:

Phone : +1-650-681-5000 Phone:

Governing Law:_California

Venue:_Santa Clara County, California

Tesla, Inc. — Standard NDA (November 2019) 2 of2 Confidential Information



——, —
) ' ' SECTION_T. S PAGE NO.__I]_

Tesla Energy Products Purchase Agreement
California Self-Generation Incentive Program (SGIP)

This “Agreement” is between Tesla, Inc. (“Tesla”), and the entity represented by you, as the signatory to this Agreement
(“Buyer”). The Agreement consists of (1) the below Price Sheet and (2) the attached terms & conditions, and is effective
on the date that you agree to this Agreement (by electronic acceptance, signature or e-mail).

As described in Section 2 below, as a condition of the pricing in this Agreement, Buyer must also sign a ten (10) year
“Services Agreement,” contemporaneously with this Agreement.

Price Sheet
Buyer information
Buyer Name: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Street Address: 7270 West End Rd, Arcata, CA 95521, US
Signatory Name:
Signatory Phone Number:
Tesla entity

Tesla, Inc. of 3500 Deer Creek Road, Palo Alto, CA 94304
888-765-2489

CA CSLB 949283

Energy Products and Contract Price

Energy Storage System 980 kW/ 3944 kWh Powerpack System

Product Value: $2,205,914
SGIP Eligible Costs: $2,997,505
Contract Price (after SGIP $0

Incentive and discounts):

Approximate Completion Date

60-180 days from the date of this Agreement
Signed by

Buyer: Tesla, Inc.:

Your signature: = By: %
\X \B4
) L

| =g

Title: Title: Sr. Director, Commercial Energy Sales

Date: Date: May 26, 2020

Commercial Energy Products Purchase Agreement — SGIP
V1.0, 05/12/2020
Tesla, Inc.



G— -— —
) y " SECTION 9.5 PAGENO.__15_

Energy Products Purchase Agreement
Terms & Conditions

1. Authorization; Representations. By your acceptance of this Agreement (by electronic acceptance or signature),
you represent and agree that you are an authorized representative of Buyer, permitted to bind Buyer in this Agreement. If
applicable, you and Buyer further represent and warrant to Tesla that all financial information that you or Buyer has provided
(or will provide) to Tesla is true and accurate and fairly represents Buyer’s financial position as at the date it was provided.
Tesla may terminate this Agreement if any of the representations in this Section 1 are incorrect.

2. Purchase; SGIP Program.

(a) Buyer agrees to purchase the “Products” indicated in the Price Sheet. Tesla agrees to sell Buyer the
Products and install them at the address you provided in the Price Sheet (the “Site”). Notwithstanding the above, prior to
installing the Products, Tesla may review Buyer’s credit, and Tesla shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in its
sole discretion based upon the outcome of such credit review.

(b) The Products will be financed by the California Self-Generation Incentive Program (“SGIP”), which provides
an incentive payment to be paid over five (5) years, subject to certain conditions (the “SGIP Incentive”). The SGIP Incentive
when assigned to Tesla as the SGIP payee permits Tesla to offer the Products at a reduced cost, or no cost to Buyer. Buyer
hereby assigns the SGIP Incentive to Tesla, and releases any claim to the SGIP Incentive. Buyer agrees to cooperate with
Tesla’s efforts to obtain the SGIP Incentive, including signing necessary documents.

(c) As a condition of receiving pricing based upon the SGIP Incentive, Buyer agrees to notify Tesla and the
SGIP program administrator, not less than ninety (90) days in advance, if Buyer intends to sell or relocate the Products
within ten (10) years after the date they are installed. This obligation will survive the termination or expiration of this
Agreement. Contact information for the SGIP program administrator can be found at
https://www.selfgenca.com/home/contact/. Notification to Tesla should be directed to CommercialAccounts@Tesla.com.

(d) In order to enable the SGIP Incentive, Buyer is required to sign the “Services Agreement’
contemporaneously with this Agreement. As more fully detailed therein, the Services Agreement provides for Tesla to
maintain the Products for ten (10) years, and also provides that Tesla will remotely operate the Products in a manner
necessary to obtain the SGIP Incentive.

3. Contract Price. The Price Sheet shows the price of the Products and their installation after the SGIP Incentive
(“Contract Price”), and the value of the Products (“Product Value”). The Contract Price is charged in accordance with the
Schedule of Payments on the Price Sheet, and payment is due thirty (30) days after the date of each invoice. Subject to
Section 4, the Contract Price is inclusive of all taxes and permitting fees. The Contract Price does not include, and Tesla
is not obligated to provide, any ongoing services in connection with the Products (including maintenance services), except
as required in connection with Tesla’s limited warranties in Section 12, and as separately agreed under the Services
Agreement.

4. Changes to Price Sheet.

(a) Tesla’s obligation to install the Products is conditioned on such work falling with Tesla’s “Standard Scope”,
which assumes standard wage rates, no unforeseen site conditions, no significant upgrades to existing electrical works,
interconnection fees not to exceed $1,000, and customary government costs, taxes and fees. Further information about
what constitutes Tesla’s Standard Scope is available upon request.

(b) Tesla has the right to update the Price Sheet if, upon further diligence regarding the Site, Tesla determines
that there are conditions outside of the Standard Scope. If Buyer does not reject the updated Price Sheet within thirty (30)
days and cancel this Agreement, the changes will be deemed accepted.

(c) in addition, Tesla may in its sole discretion determine that because of issues beyond the Standard Scope,
or because of the unavailability of the SGIP Incentive, Tesla will not install the Products. In such case, Tesla may terminate
this Agreement by notice to Buyer, and if applicable shall refund the Order Payment.

5. Installation; Service. Tesla will contact Buyer to perform an energy efficiency audit of the Site as required by the
SGIP program, and subsequently, to schedule installation of the Products. Installation will be performed by Tesla or an
affiliate or subcontractor, at Tesla’s election. Tesla will commission the System in accordance with its standard practices.
Buyer authorizes Tesla, or its affiliate or subcontractor, to submit on Buyer’s behalf any permit or interconnection application

Commercial Energy Products Purchase Agreement — SGIP
V1.0, 05/12/2020
Tesla, Inc.



T secTion_ 99, PAGENO.__ L

that is required in connection with the Products. Buyer also agrees to give Tesla, or its affiliate or subcontractor, access to
the Site as scheduled so Tesla can install and service the Products. Buyer is responsible for all existing property conditions
at the Site, whether known or unknown.

6. Payment. By entering into this Agreement, Buyer agrees to pay the Contract Price as described in the Price Sheet.
Tesla may provide combined or separate invoices for each of the Products. Risk of loss shall transfer with respect to each
component of the Products, upon its delivery to the Site. Title to the Products will transfer to Buyer after Tesla (i) completes
installation and (ii) receives payment in full of the Contract Price (if any).

7. Order Payment. The Order Payment (if any) that Buyer previously paid for the Products is now non-refundable,
except in the circumstances described in Section 4(c). When this Agreement becomes effective, Tesla incurs significant
costs preparing to install the Products. The Order Payment is a reasonable estimate of the damages Tesla would incur if
Buyer cancels its order before the Products are installed.

8. Privacy. The Tesla Customer Privacy Policy is part of this Agreement. You, as the authorized representative of
Buyer, agree to be contacted at the phone number listed in the Price Sheet with more information or offers about Tesla
products. You understand these calls or texts may use automated dialing or pre-recorded messages. This consent is not a
condition of purchase. You may opt out of this consent at any time by contacting Tesla at 1-888-765-2489.

9. Intellectual Property. Tesla owns all intellectual property rights associated with the Products. Tesla grants Buyer
a non-exclusive license to use any software embedded into the Products, only in connection with the operation of the
Products.

10. Remote Monitoring and Firmware Upgrades.

(a) Buyer agrees that Tesla may access the Products remotely to monitor. performance, perform diagnostics
and upgrade firmware. This monitoring requires a high speed internet line, which Buyer must provide at Buyer's cost. If
Buyer does not maintain this internet connection, Tesla cannot monitor the Products. Tesla is not responsible for any issues
arising from Buyer’s failure to provide an internet connection, or a failure of monitoring arising from the same.

(b) ‘Buyer Data” consists of the data related to the Products which Tesla makes available to Buyer via the
Tesla app or any other performance monitoring provided by Tesla. Buyer Data shall be owned by Buyer. Tesla may use
Buyer Data (i) to perform its obligations under this Agreement including any warranties, (ii) t<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>